
 

 

AGENDA 

 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

4:30 p.m., Monday, September 12, 2016 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 
 

Room 239, City Hall 
__________________________________________ 

 
 COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Council Member Robert C. Clark, Chair 

     Council Member Denise D. Adams, Vice Chair 

     Council Member Vivian H. Burke 

     Council Member Derwin L. Montgomery 

 

 

GENERAL AGENDA 
 
G-1. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTING 

SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM. [$125,000] 
 
G-2. RESOLUTION AMENDING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF ISSUANCE OF 

MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS - ROLLING HILLS (EAST 
WARD) 

 
G-3. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

CITY OF WINSTION - SALEM FOR THE  FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 (FEDERAL 
HOUSING FUNDS). 

 
G-4. CONSIDERATION OF  MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENTS  WITH THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS TO TWO AGREEMENTS 
FOR RENTAL ASSISTANCE WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM (HAWS). 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
G-5. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS AUTHORIZING A LOAN OF UP TO $1,600,000 

FOR ACQUISITION, DEMOLITION AND REHABILITATION/REPAIR IN 
SUPPORT OF 79 UNITS OF MULTI-FAMILY RENTAL HOUSING KNOWN AS 
NEW HOPE MANOR (NORTHEAST WARD) [Council remanded this item to 

Finance Committee at the August 15, 2016 Council Meeting.]: 
 



AGENDA September 12, 2016 Page 2 
 

 

a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LOAN TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR NEW HOPE MANOR. ($1,600,000). 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2016-2017. 

 



AGENDA September 12, 2016 Page 3 
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Property Matters 

 
C-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED 

PROPERTY BY PRIVATE SALE (N.C.G.S. 160A-279 AND 160A-514) TO 
UNITED HEALTH CENTERS. 

 
C-2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH JORDAN 

CONSULTANTS, ASLA, PA FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN 
SERVICES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE NORTH WARD PARK. 
[$177,400] 

 
Community and Economic Development 

 
C-3. REPORT ON THE EAST END MASTER PLAN. 

 
Public Safety 

 
C-4. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL TO ACCEPT A 

TRANSFER OF FORENSIC SERVICES EQUIPMENT FROM THE FORSYTH 
COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED CITY-COUNTY 
FORENSIC SERVICES UNIT. 

 
Leisure Services 

 
C-5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM TO APPLY 

FOR A PARKS AND RECREATION TRUST FUND (PARTF) 2016 CONNECT NC 
GRANT. 

 
Human Resources 

 
C-6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH AETNA FOR THE PROVISION OF A MEDICARE 
ADVANTAGE PLAN FOR RETIREES. [$1,362,000] 

 
C-7. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH NORTH CAROLINA MUTUAL/SECURIAN FOR THE 
PROVISION OF EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURANCE. [$230,000] 

 
Finance/Budget 

 
C-8. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATING TO CONTRACTS: 

 
a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND 

INSTALLATION OF FITNESS COURSE EQUIPMENT AT PINEY GROVE 



AGENDA September 12, 2016 Page 4 
 

 

PARK  (NORTH WARD) - Cunningham Associates, Inc. - $129,861.14. 
 

b. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR MILLER PARK STREAM 
RESTORATION (SOUTHEAST WARD) - North State Environmental, Inc. - 

$328,422.85. 
 

c. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND 
INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR BLUM PARK 
(NORTHEAST WARD) - Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC - $227,736. 

 
d. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SECURITY OFFICER 

SERVICES - AlliedBarton Security Services, LLC - $148,006.41 (Estimated 

Amount). 
 

e. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR ONE TON TRUCKS 
WITH DUMP BEDS - Piedmont Truck Center, LLC - $237,258. 

 
f. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR COMPACT PICK-UP 

TRUCKS - Modern Automotive Network, LLC - $150,220. 
 

g. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR PICK-UP TRUCKS - 
Piedmont Truck Center, LLC - $105,976. 

 
h. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR COMPUTERS - Dell 

Marketing L.P. - $310,314.39. 
 

i. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR MOTOROLA 
RADIOS FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FIRE DEPARTMENT - 

Motorola Solutions, Inc. - $173,404. 
 

j. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR A FIRE PUMPER 
TRUCK - The Sutphen Corporation - $488,054.36. 

 
C-9. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REGARDING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

FOR FIRE STATIONS #7 AND #9: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR FIRE 
STATIONS #7 AND #9 - R.P. Murray, Inc. - $3,072,000. (Estimated Amount). 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
C-10. RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 ANNUAL TAX 

SETTLEMENT AND ADOPTION OF AN ORDER TO COLLECT CURRENT 
TAXES FOR 2016 (FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017) AND DELINQUENT TAXES 
FROM 2007 THROUGH 2015. 



AGENDA September 12, 2016 Page 5 
 

 

 
C-11. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 

BUDGET ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH 
CAROLINA: 

 
a. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX 

LEVY ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 
 

b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
General Government 

 
C-12. ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN PROPERTY AS A  HISTORIC 

LANDMARK - The John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House, 605 West Cascade Avenue, 

Winston-Salem and a Portion of an Unopened Alley. Public Hearing October 17, 

2016. 
 
C-13. APPROVAL OF FINANCE COMMITTEE SUMMARY OF MINUTES - August 8, 

2016. 
 



 



 

        CITY COUNCIL – ACTION REQUEST FORM 

 

Date: August 15, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Lisa M. Saunders, Chief Financial Officer 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of Resolution Awarding Contract for Investment Consulting Services for the 
City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina. 

 

Summary of Information:  
 
The attached resolution authorizes the contract award for investment consulting services related 
to the City of Winston-Salem’s fixed income and equity investments. 
 
The City of Winston-Salem invests certain long-term assets such as police officer pension 
funds, capital reserves, employee benefit reserves, and risk management reserves in long-term 
financial instruments under an investment policy approved by the City Council.  The 
investment portfolio consists of seven external equity investment managers, three external fixed 
income managers and six index and mutual funds which total $361 million.  The City internally 
manages fixed income and cash and investments for shorter-term assets which total $219 
million.  Exhibit A attached is a detailed schedule of cash and investments. 
 
In March 2016, the City advertised and sent proposals to ten local firms for Investment 
Consulting Services.  We received responses from five vendors and all five were interviewed.  
An interview team was formed which included Lisa Saunders, Chief Financial Officer;  Donna 
Hull, Assistant Finance Officer/Treasurer; Rory Davis, Investment Analyst; Greg Turner, 
Assistant City Manager; and Napoleon Richardson, Chairman of the Winston-Salem Police 
Officers’ Retirement Commission.  Proposals were scored based on the following criteria:  
public pension plan experience, staff availability, understanding of the investment policy, plan 
of action, and local office.   
  
 

Committee Action: 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-1-

G-1.      DRAFT



 

The following are the summary rankings and fees of each proposal: 
 

Firm Ranking Annual Fee 

Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown 1 $125,000 

UBS 2 175,000 

Southeastern Advisory 3 100,000 

Wells Fargo 4 350,000 

Stephens 5 91,500 

 
We recommend approval of the attached resolution, which awards the investment consulting 
contract to Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown for a three year contract with an option to execute 
contracts for an additional two years.  Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown has worked with the City 
for over 30 years and has a local office.  It has advised the City through several economic 
downturns and provided consistent investment leadership and education through multiple 
market cycles and always operating within the investment policy guidelines.   
 
In December 2015, Raymond James Financial, Inc. announced its intent to purchase the 
Private Client Services business (Alex. Brown) from Deutsche Bank.  This transaction is 
scheduled to close in September 2016.  The Raymond James acquisition will expand the 
resources but will maintain the same team in the Winston-Salem office.  The Winston-Salem 
office of Alex Brown was opened in 1946, and remains the largest branch in the Southwest. 
  
 
MWBE Comment 
 
Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown has proven a commitment to diversity by recommending 
investment managers owned by women and minority businesses.  The City has 30% of our 
active managers as women/minority businesses.  We are currently evaluating an additional 
minority firm to add to the portfolio. 
 
Workforce Demographics:  See Exhibit B 

 
 

-2-

G-1.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTING 

SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem issued a request for proposal soliciting bids for 

investment consulting services; and 

 WHEREAS, five proposals were received from qualified firms as follows: 

Firm Annual Fee 

Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown $125,000 

UBS 175,000 

Southeastern Advisory 100,000 

Wells Fargo 350,000 

Stephens 91,500 

  
WHEREAS, Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown was selected based on the qualifications of 

public pension plan experience, understanding of the investment policy, and their experience 

working effectively with the City for over 30 years; and, 

 WHEREAS, the consulting services provided will allow for cost-effective and efficient 

management of the City of Winston-Salem’s fixed income and equity investment portfolios as 

provided for by the investment policies and ordinances of the City of Winston-Salem; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and the Chief Financial Officer recommend that the fixed 

income and equity portfolio investment consulting services contract be awarded to Deutsche 

Bank Alex. Brown in the amount of $125,000 annually for three years with the option to renew 

for an additional two years. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina, that Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown is awarded the 

contract for consulting services for the fixed income and equity investment portfolio and that the 

City Manager and Chief Financial Officer are hereby authorized and directed to execute the 

contract. 

-3-

G-1.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Winston-Salem, 

North Carolina, that the City Manager and Chief Financial Officer are hereby authorized to 

negotiate and execute on-going contract renewal agreements for two extensions of two years at 

the City’s option with the vendor. 

-4-

G-1.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Cash

Bank of America Merrill Lynch 1,643,952$             

Bank of North Carolina 24,294,753             

Branch Banking & Trust 34,127,483             

First Tennessee 5,024,978               

North Carolina Capital Management Trust 22,992,335             

Wells Fargo 3,652,512               

  Total 91,736,013$        

Bond Proceeds

Bank of North Carolina 1,197,611$             

Branch Banking & Trust 49,563,437             

North Carolina Capital Management Trust 44,746,919             

  Total 95,507,967$        

Investments-Internally Managed Fixed Income

Agencies 20,115,337$           

Commercial Paper 11,962,120             

  Total 32,077,457$        

Investments-Externally Managed Fixed Income

Garcia Hamilton & Associates 56,353,641$           

Invesco 5,439,120               

Standish Mellon 54,845,633             

US Bank 1,254,915               

Wells Capital Management 29,576,927             

  Total 147,470,236$      

Investments-Externally Managed Equities

Deutsche Global Infrastructure Fund 4,983,537$             

Douglas C. Lane & Associates, Inc. 35,222,153             

EARNEST Partners, LLC 9,989,490               

Fairpointe Capital, LLC 9,224,608               

Russell 1000 Growth Fund 15,348,626             

Russell 1000 Value Fund 38,657,249             

S&P 600 Growth Fund 11,548,521             

Schafer Cullen 19,849,572             

Systematic Financial Management, L.P. 17,127,127             

Thornburg Investment Management 10,382,939             

Vanguard Index Fund 30,331,803             

WCM Investment Management 10,598,970             

  Total 213,264,595$      

Total Cash and Investments 580,056,268$      

City of Winston-Salem 

Cash and Investments

As of June 30, 2016

-5-

G-1.      DRAFT



 

-6-



Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

19 15 33 1 0 0 0 34  *

% of 

Total 55.9% 44.1% 97.1% 2.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Exhibit B

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Investment Consulting Services

Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown

Winston-Salem, NC  27101

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

Confidential-7-

G-1.      DRAFT



 

-8-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: 
D. Ritchie Brooks, Community & Business Development Director 
Lisa Saunders, Chief Financial Officer 

Council Action Requested: 

Resolution Amending Preliminary Approval of Issuance of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
- Rolling Hills Apartments (East Ward). 

Summary of Information:  
 
On April 18, 2016, the City Council of the City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina, adopted a 
resolution giving preliminary approval to the issuance of revenue bonds to finance the 
acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of an affordable housing development (Rolling Hills 
Apartments). 
 
The City was requested to provide financing for the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of a 
110-unit, multi-family rental housing development located at 770 Ferrell Ct., Winston-Salem 
known as Rolling Hills Apartments.  The purpose of the action was to indicate the willingness of 
the City to issue Housing Revenue Bonds for the acquisition and complete rehabilitation of 106 
of the 110 units of the identified property.   
 
North Carolina General Statutes (NCGS) allow a city to issue multifamily housing revenue 
bonds. NCGS 160A-456 (b) and 157-14 indicate that the bonds shall not be a debt of the City nor 
shall any bonds or obligations be payable out of any funds of the city.   By statute and by 
contract, the repayment of the bonds will not be an obligation of the city.  Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Bonds are secured by the revenues of the project and not by any pledge of funds by the 
city.  
 

The Rolling Hills Apartment complex is a private, Section 8-subsidized apartment housing 
development.  Over the last five years, Community and Business Development staff has cited 
units within the complex for several repeat violations.  Those violations include: defective light 
fixtures/outlets/switches, inoperative or missing smoke detectors, holes in walls and ceilings, 
plumbing leaks and defective plumbing fixtures, infestations of roaches and bedbugs, defective 
or loose floor coverings and inoperable heating facilities.   
 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

-9-

G-2.      DRAFT



 
This resolution is amending the preliminary approval of issuance of multifamily housing revenue 

bonds. 

 

The prospective owners of the complex, Steel Rolling Hills, LLC, proposes to perform 

renovations to 106 of the 110 units on the property.  The four units excluded from the scope of 

work were recently rehabbed as a result of fire damage or other reasons.  The proposed 

rehabilitation scope of work was recently revised and totals $4,275,972 or $42,760 per unit 

including contingency. As a general summary, the revised scope of work includes the following 

items that originally were not in the scope: 

  

1. Increased ACM abatement from $700/unit to $2500/unit 
2. Tuck pointing allowance was increased to $11,000 from $5,000 
3. Exterior unit doors were increased from 76 slabs to 106 slabs and jambs which include 

strike master jamb reinforcement 
4. Flooring replacement was increased from 25% to 100% 
5. Appliances were increased from 53 units to 106 units 
6. Kitchen cabinets and tops were increased from 53 units to 106 units 
7. Bath vanities and cultured marble tops were increased from 53 units to 106 units 
8. 6 ADA units upgrades were increased from $10,000/ unit to $14,000/ unit 
9. Water heater replacement was increased to 106 units from 43 
10. Kitchen sinks and faucets replacements were added 
11. Bathroom faucets were added 
12. Unit electrical panel replacements were added 
13. Hard wired interconnected Smoke detectors were upgrades from wireless 
14. Surveillance camera upgrades were added (to the sellers current scope) 
15. Accessible routes were increased to $22,000 from $15,000 
16. $60,000 Vehicular gate with key fob access was added for security 
17. $20,000 perimeter fence repairs were added 
18. $30,000 added to community building upgrades 
19. $20,000 in Sanitary sewer repairs were added  

  

All of the previously mentioned code enforcement violations appear to be addressed. The revised 

per unit cost provides adequate funds to complete the repairs, which if satisfactorily completed, 

should bring the units into code compliance and substantially improve the overall physical 

condition of the complex.   

 

-10-

G-2.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AMENDING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF ISSUANCE OF 

MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS - ROLLING HILLS APARTMENTS 

(EAST WARD) 

WHEREAS, on April 18, 2016, the City Council of the City of Winston-Salem, North 
Carolina (the “City”) adopted a resolution (the “Preliminary Resolution”) giving preliminary 
approval to the issuance of the City’s non-recourse housing revenue bonds in an amount not to 
exceed $5,600,000 (the “Bonds”), the proceeds of which would be loaned to Steele Rolling Hills 
LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, or an affiliated or related entity (the 
“Borrower”), to finance a portion of the cost of the acquisition and renovation of 110 affordable 
housing units at Rolling Hills Apartments, located at 770 Ferrell Court, Winston-Salem, Forsyth 
County, North Carolina (the “Development”); and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Borrower received an allocation of volume cap under 
Section 146 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) for the Bonds in the 
amount of $5,600,000 from the North Carolina Federal Tax Reform Allocation Committee 
(“TRAC”), based on the recommendation of the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency 
(“NCHFA”), on August 15, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has agreed to do additional renovations and improvements to 
the Development, with the result that the amount of tax exempt debt necessary to finance the cost 
of the Development is more than originally anticipated, and has requested the City to amend the 
Preliminary Resolution to increase the amount of the Bonds to an amount not to exceed 
$7,800,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower will request the NCHFA and TRAC to increase the amount of 
volume cap for the Development from $5,600,000 to up to $7,800,000;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 
of Winston-Salem: 

1. The City hereby confirms the determination it made in the Preliminary Resolution 
that the Development will involve the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of a housing 
facility to serve persons of low and moderate income, and that therefore, pursuant to the terms 
and subject to the conditions hereinafter stated and the Act, the City agrees to assist the Borrower 
in every reasonable way to issue bonds to finance the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of 
the Development, and, in particular, to undertake the issuance of the City’s non-recourse housing 
revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) in an amount not to exceed $7,800,000 to finance a portion of the 
cost of the Development. 

2. The City intends that the adoption of this resolution be considered as an 
expression of official intent toward the issuance of the Bonds within the meaning of the 
regulations issued by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury 
Regulations issued pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 

3. All other terms of the Preliminary Resolution remain in full force and effect. 

4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

-11-

G-2.      DRAFT



CITY SECRETARY CERTIFICATION 

I, Melanie Johnson, the duly appointed City Secretary of the City of Winston-Salem, 
North Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was properly adopted by the City 
Council of the City at a regular meeting held on September 19, 2016. 

      
       By:_________________________________ 

(SEAL)      Melanie Johnson, City Secretary 
 

 
-12-

G-2.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 31, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of Amendments to the FY 2016-17 Budget Ordinances (Federal Housing Funds) 
for the City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina. 

Summary of Information:  
 
The proposed amendments to the FY 2016-17 budget ordinances authorize adjustments for the 
following purposes.  
 

Appropriation of Grants and Other Revenues Received 

o  The FY 2016-17 budget appropriated $943,510 in Federal Fiscal Year 2016 HOME 

Investment Partnership funds. The Community and Business Development 

Department has received an additional $5,068.  The HOME Program operates as a 

consortium of Winston-Salem, Forsyth County, and the other municipalities in the 

county. Therefore, Forsyth County’s allocation will increase by $900 to $170,700.  

In addition, HOME regulations require a minimum award to a Community Housing 

Development Organization.  To meet the requirement, the award to Habitat for 

Humanity will increase by $1,000 to $143,000.  The remaining funds will be used 

for single-family housing production.  The proposed amendment appropriates these 

additional funds and awards $900 to Forsyth County and $1,000 to Habitat for 

Humanity of Forsyth County, Inc. 

 

 

 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

  

-13-

G-3.      DRAFT



o  The amount of program income generated from the City’s Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds exceeded budgeted estimates by 

$137,047.50 for FY 2014-15 and $304,888.37 for FY 2015-16.  The proposed 

amendment appropriates the additional program income from CDBG funds for the 

homeowner rehabilitation program, for the construction training program and other 

public service, and for community development initiatives.  

 

-14-

G-3.      DRAFT



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to cover changes in the 

following funds as described herein. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 20, 2016 and amended on August 15, 2016, shall be amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following funds. 

Special Revenue Funds 

 

 Home Investment Partnership Fund   

    Program Expenditures $5,070  

    

 Community Development Block Grant Fund   

    Program Expenditures 441,940  

    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Expenditures $447,010  

  
 

  
  

SECTION 2. That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

Special Revenue Funds 

 Home Investment Partnership Fund   

    Program Income $5,070  

    

 Community Development Block Grant Fund   

    FY 2014-15 Program Income 137,050  

    FY 2015-16 Program Income 304,890  

  441,940  

    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Revenues $447,010  

 

 

SECTION 3. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-15-

G-3.      DRAFT



 

-16-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 1, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director, Community and Business Development 

Council Action Requested: 

A) Authorize extension of a subgrantee agreement with the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem 
for HOME rental assistance. 
B) Authorize $30,000 in additional Housing Finance Assistance Funds for rental assistance. 

Summary of Information:  
The Housing Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS) administers rental assistance programs for 
special populations using Continuum of Care and HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) funds 
provided by the City.  Most of the beneficiaries are disabled homeless individuals.   
 
The City must execute grant agreements with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) and then execute subgrantee agreements with HAWS before it can disburse 
funds to HAWS.  Prior to 2014, HAWS had reserve funds that it could use to pay landlords if a 
subgrantee agreement had not been executed.  However, HAWS advised the City that HUD was 
now holding its reserves and that it no longer had funds on hand to pay landlords without the 
City’s funds.  As a result, the Mayor and City Council authorized creation of a revolving bridge 
fund in March 2014.  The City pays invoices from HAWS using the bridge fund, and once the 
City receives grant agreements from HUD and the subgrantee agreement has been executed, the 
grants repay the bridge fund. 
 
HUD has not provided grant agreements for current renewal grants with start dates beginning 
after March 1, 2016.  Also, more individuals now are receiving rental assistance, which has 
increased expenditures.  This combination has depleted the bridge fund, which has a balance of 
$28,021 while the invoice for September is $97,275.   
 
The FY16 HOME subgrantee agreement ended June 30, 2016 with a balance of $43,047.  To 
meet the immediate need to pay HAWS and avoid having clients lose their housing, staff 
supports extending the term of the HOME agreement to fully utilize the HOME funds and 

Committee Action: 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-17-

G-4.      DRAFT



adding $30,000 to the bridge fund from Housing Finance Assistance Funds.  If agreements with 
HUD are in place by the end of September, these measures will be sufficient.  If agreements with 
HUD are not in place by the end of September, staff will need to request additional measures to 
cover rental assistance costs for October until the HUD agreements can be put in place. 
 
An appropriate resolution and project budget ordinance are attached. 

-18-

G-4.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS  

TO TWO AGREEMENTS FOR RENTAL ASSISTANCE WITH THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem and the Housing Authority of the City of 

Winston-Salem (HAWS) entered into a subgrantee agreement to provide bridge funding, on a 

revolving basis, for the operation of rental assistance programs for disabled, homeless 

households; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem and HAWS entered into a Tenant-Based Rental 

Assistance Program Agreement to provide Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2015 HOME Investment 

Partnership (HOME) funds; and 

 WHEREAS, due to delays in receipt of funding agreements from HUD, sufficient grant 

funds are unavailable to reimburse HAWS for payments to owners for assisted tenants for an 

interim period. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem authorize up to $30,000 in additional Housing Finance Assistance Funds to 

HAWS to provide bridge funding, on a revolving basis, for the operation of the rental assistance 

programs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City 

Council of the City of Winston-Salem authorize extension of the Tenant-Based Rental 

Assistance Program Agreement for FFY 2015 HOME funds. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Winston-Salem authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute contracts and documents 

necessary to carry out the activities herein authorized. 

 

-19-

G-4.a.      DRAFT



 

-20-



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to appropriate 

additional bridge funding for the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem to address a temporary 

shortage of funds in rental assistance programs. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 20, 2016 and amended on August 15, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 

 

 Housing Finance Assistance Fund   

    Housing Authority of Winston-Salem – Bridge Funding $30,000  

    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Expenditures $30,000  

  
 

  
  

SECTION 2. That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

Special Revenue Funds 

    

 Housing Finance Assistance Fund   

    Fund Balance Appropriation $30,000  

    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Revenues $30,000  

 

 

SECTION 3. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-21-

G-4.b.      DRAFT



 

-22-



 
 

 
 

TO: Mayor Joines and Members of City Council  

FROM: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director of Community and Business 
Development  

DATE: September 7, 2016 

SUBJECT: Information on New Hope Manor Project 

CC: Lee D. Garrity, City Manager  
Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager 
Evan Raleigh, Deputy Director of Community and Business 
Development  

 
 

During the August 8th meeting of the Finance Committee, staff presented a request from 

HAWS for funding to acquire, partially demolish and rehab the New Hope Manor 

apartment complex.  At that meeting, City Council made requests for several additional 

pieces of information.  The following responses were provided to staff by HAWS on 

September 6th:   

 

ISSUE 1:  What is the plan to replace the units that are being lost as a 

consequence of HAWS’ proposed demolition of a portion of the community? 

 

RESPONSE 1:  HAWS anticipates that the proposed redevelopment of Cleveland 

Avenue Homes (through HUD’s Choice Neighborhoods Initiative grant) will yield 

an increase in the number of affordable rental units in and around the New Hope 

Manor community.  However, in the immediate term, HAWS has insufficient 

funding to construct replacement units.  With that said, HAWS’ position is that the 

effective loss of affordable units is zero, despite the planned demolition of 

approximately 41 units in the New Hope Manor community.  HAWS reaches this 

conclusion after reviewing the New Hope Manor rent roll and examining the 

condition of the units.  As of June 1, 2016, only 63 of 120 units were occupied.  It 

is HAWS’ opinion that many, if not all, of the unoccupied units (and some of the 

occupied units) are not habitable, and have not been habitable for some time.  

Consequently, despite the fact that 120 units purport to be available at affordable 

rents to low and moderate income earners, only approximately half that number are 

actually available.   

 

Additionally, there are currently no affordability restrictions (or use restrictions 

either, for that matter) recorded against the property.  Therefore, if the market 

changes, the affordability of the units will be lost.  Whereas, under HAWS’ 

proposal, affordability restrictions will run with the land for a period of 40 years – 

guaranteeing utilization of the property as affordable housing well into the future. 

 

ISSUE 2:  Will the New Hope Manor site be utilized for a new school? 

-23-

G-5.      DRAFT



2 
 

 

RESPONSE 2:  HAWS has engaged in two extensive planning projects regarding 

the Cleveland Avenue corridor.  Both planning efforts identified the periphery of 

the Gathering Place at Fairview Park as an ideal school site.  This area includes the 

New Hope Manor community.  HAWS feels that the introduction of a school into 

the community would be a catalytic event - effecting development transformation 

throughout the neighborhood.  However, while HAWS has discussed this opinion 

with WSFCS staff, there is currently no plan to construct a school in the identified 

area.   

 

While HAWS will continue to pursue with WSFCS staff the introduction of a new 

school site into the Cleveland Avenue corridor, HAWS will operate the New Hope 

Manor community as affordable housing – period.  Barring unforeseen 

circumstances (that would, of necessity, require additional City Council action), 

any disposition of land for utilization of a new school would not reduce the 

number of on-site affordable housing units being operated in the New Hope manor 

community. 

 

ISSUE 3:  What is the impact of HAWS’ purchase of the New Hope Manor 

community on the current owners? 

 

RESPONSE 3:  The current owners will not be enriched by the purchase.  HAWS 

has received reports indicating that, at the current purchase price ($1,900,000.00), 

the current owners will realize a cash loss of approximately $400,000.00 and 

$300,000.00, respectively.  These reports are supported by promissory notes (with 

each note guaranteed by one of the two individual investors in the owner-entity 

LLC) provided by the current lender (Carolina Bank), which indicate an 

outstanding aggregate principal balance of approximately $2,700,000.00 (see 

promissory notes attached).   

 

ISSUE 4:  Is HAWS’ proposed rehabilitation scope of work sufficient to 

address the physical needs of the community? 

 

RESPONSE 4:  HAWS has conducted a thorough assessment of the site, as more 

fully described in the accompanying attachments.  Additionally, HAWS has 

reviewed all of the inspection reports provided by the City and HAWS is confident 

that its scope of work addresses the violations noted therein.  While the buildings 

slated for demolition exhibit the types of conditions that would necessitate 

extensive investment just to render them habitable, the buildings slated for 

rehabilitation have been determined to be in surprisingly better shape than 

anticipated.  While a more extensive rehabilitation budget would be welcome, the 

numbers simply do not support it.  However, based on historical experience with 

similar properties, HAWS is confident it can stay within its proposed budget while 

bringing all 79 units slated for rehabilitation to a standard of habitability that is 

-24-

G-5.      DRAFT



3 
 

pleasing to City Council, City staff, and, most importantly, residents of New Hope 

Manor.  

 

In addition to the information provided above by HAWS, staff has prepared the 

Community Development Fund Balance report which is attached. HAWS has also provided 

a scope of work per building which indicated an average investment of approximately 

$13,000 per unit including exterior work.  Attached is the scope of work summary.  A more 

detailed scope of work was also provided and is available upon request.  Should you 

choose to move forward in considering this request, an appropriate CARF and resolution is 

attached for your consideration.     

 

 

_____________________________________ 

D. Ritchie Brooks 

Director of Community and Business Development   

 

-25-

G-5.      DRAFT



 

-26-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 1, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director, Community and Business Development 

Council Action Requested: 

Authorization of a loan of up to $1,600,000 for acquisition, demolition and rehabilitation/repair 
in support of 79 units of multi-family rental housing known as New Hope Manor (Northeast 
Ward). 

Summary of Information:  
This item was presented for information at the June Finance Committee meeting.   
 
The Housing Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS) has requested $1,700,000 for acquisition, 
demolition, and rehabilitation/repair at New Hope Manor Apartments, located on Burke Village 
Lane.  According to HAWS, the vacancy rate is nearly 70%, crime in the area has increased, and 
the current owner is unwilling to continue to “throw good money after bad” in the form of lease 
enforcement, maintenance, and/or rehab.  City Code Enforcement records and experience show 
that the property is not being maintained.  Also according to HAWS, there is over $2.5 million in 
outstanding bank debt, and the bank is willing to take a loss on the property. 
 
HAWS plans to acquire the property and demolish seven of the 18 buildings, which will reduce 
the number of units from 120 to 79.  The buildings to be demolished are based on the physical 
condition of the building.  Once rehab/repair is complete, HAWS plans to operate the property as 
rental housing, with no operating subsidy tied to the property.  The property will be owned by a 
single-asset limited liability company, which will be 100% owned by Forsyth Economic 
Ventures, Inc., HAWS’ non-profit subsidiary instrumentality.  All units will be two-bedroom 
units renting for $475 per month.  HAWS has agreed to set aside one unit for the City to use to 
house families who must move out of their homes due to code enforcement action until they can 
locate permanent housing.  The City will pay utilities and repairs for the unit. 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 . 

-27-

G-5.      DRAFT



HAWS projects a total cost of $3,120,000, with requested City financing of $1,700,000 and bank 
financing of $1,420,000, as outlined below. 
 

 City Bank Total 

Acquisition 1,000,000 900,000 1,900,000 

Demolition 200,000 0 200,000 

Rehab/Repair 500,000 520,000 1,020,000 

Total 1,700,000 1,420,000 3,120,000 

 
These numbers are preliminary since a purchase price and final terms of the bank loan will need 
to be negotiated.  In addition, HAWS has not made a physical inspection of all of the units.  The 
scope of work is based on an inspection of vacant units and HAWS’ past experience with similar 
projects and consists primarily of replacing flooring and doors; replacing kitchen cabinets, 
appliances and countertops; repairing and replacing sinks, toilets and waterlines; servicing 
HVAC units; general repairs to units; and repairing and painting the fence.  
 
HAWS agrees to make a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) annually starting in the fourth year 
after completion if the property is not taxable, which is equal to the actual or estimated City 
property tax but not to exceed $10,000.  The proposed financing is as follows: 

• Funds for demolition and rehab/repair will be a deferred loan for 20 years and then an 
amortizing loan for 20 years at 0% interest.  During the 20-year deferral period the loan 
would be credited the amount of the payment in lieu of taxes plus the value of the rent for 
the City unit.  For example, $475 monthly rent plus $10,000 PILOT would equal a 
$15,700 credit.  After 20 years, the balance of the loan would amortize for 20 years. 

• Funds for acquisition will be a deferred loan at 0% interest that is due on sale or transfer 
for the property. 

 
When this request was originally presented to City Council, the proposed fund sources included 
$320,000 in Housing Finance Assistance Funds, which were to be released from the Brown 
Elementary School project, and $1,380,000 in 2014 General Obligation Bond funds, which were 
rescinded from the Pepper Building project.  However, there was a concern voiced by Council 
Member Montgomery regarding using funds allocated for the Brown Elementary project to 
support this project.  At this time, staff has not been able to identify another fund source to 
support the full amount of HAWS’ original request for assistance.  Should City Council choose 
to support this project, staff recommends funding the project entirely from housing development 
bond funds.  The current balance of the housing development bond fund is $1.6 million.  Staff 
recommends reducing the amount of City assistance requested by HAWS for rehabilitation of the 
units by $100,000 to bring the total amount of assistance provided by the City to $1.6 million.   
 
If this project is approved, a total of $6,000,000, or 100%, of the housing/neighborhood 
development bonds would be approved for New Hope Manor, Ridgewood Place, Emmanuel 
Retirement Village, and 757 North.  An appropriate resolution and project budget ordinance are 
attached.  If the project proceeds in a timely manner, staff may request to use Community 
Development Block Grant funds in place of part of the proposed funds. 

-28-

G-5.      DRAFT



EXHIBIT A 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM (HAWS) 

FINANCING COMMITMENT FOR NEW HOPE MANOR 

 
 
1. Purpose – Financing of acquisition, demolition, and rehabilitation/repair of New Hope 
Manor, located on Burke Village Lane.   
 
2. Loan Terms – Financing in an amount not to exceed $1,600,000, to be derived from 2014 
General Obligation Bonds, subject to determination of final cost through project completion.  As 
City funds are provided as gap financing, the final rate and terms will be backed into upon 
completion of the financing package, and as determined by the requirements of the first 
mortgage loan.  Financing shall be evidenced by a Promissory Note(s) and secured by a Deed(s) 
of Trust on the property.  The loan(s) may be subordinate to a construction/interim loan obtained 
by the Borrower.  Financing for acquisition may be a deferred, interest-free loan that is due on 
sale or transfer of the property.   
 
3. Payment for Property Taxes – Borrower agrees to make a payment annually to the City 
equal to the actual or estimated City property tax but not to exceed $10,000.  Said payment may 
be credited to the loan balance for a 20-year period. 
 
4. Dedicated Unit – Borrower agrees to set aside one dwelling unit in the property to the City 
to be used for emergency relocation assistance.  The rent value of said unit may be credited to 
the loan balance.  The City will pay for utilities and repairs for the unit. 
 
5. Fees – Borrower will be responsible for all fees and closing costs as well as the City’s 
direct legal and other expenses associated with processing the loan documents. 
 
6. Other Financing - The developer shall provide or otherwise attain commitments for the 
balance of the cost to develop and construct the project, which may be derived from private debt 
and equity capital. 
 
7. Ownership - The project will be developed, owned and managed by the Housing Authority 
of the City of Winston-Salem, its affiliates or assigns, and such ownership structure shall be 
approved by the City of Winston-Salem.  Subsequent authorization of the City will be required 
prior to any transfer or assignment of ownership of the property.  
 
8. Construction and Maintenance Standards – Construction and demolition shall be required 
to comply with all applicable state and local building and other codes.  This commitment is 
subject to review and approval of the scope of work and specifications by the Community and 
Business Development Department of the City.  Borrower shall maintain the property in 
compliance with the appropriate City Code.  
 
9. Other Conditions – Should federal funds be used, Borrower shall comply with all 
applicable regulatory requirements of the federal program, including, but not limited to, 

-29-

G-5.      DRAFT



Environmental Review, Davis-Bacon, Section 3, HUD Contractor-Consultant certification 
standing, Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE), and fair housing regulations. 

-30-

G-5.      DRAFT



-31-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



 

-32-



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY AND BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT  

FUND BALANCES REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
Financial Management Services 

 
 
 

September 2016

-33-

G-5.      DRAFT



  

 

 
 

-34-

G-5.      DRAFT



2 

Introduction  
 
The purpose of this report is to present additional information and analysis of the City’s housing 
and economic development funds as of June 30, 2016 in order to identify for the Mayor and City 
Council all unassigned fund balances that could be appropriated to meet Council priorities. 
 
Unassigned fund balances generally are available for appropriation by the Mayor and City 
Council to cover potential operating deficits, provide pay-go funding for capital projects, or meet 
other strategic needs identified by the Mayor and City Council.  Use of these funds would require 
the adoption of budget amendments by the Council.   
 
The Financial Management Services Department prepared this housing fund balances report with 
assistance from the Community and Business Development Department and Budget and 
Evaluation Department.  If you have any questions about the report or need additional 
information, please contact Lisa Saunders, Chief Financial Officer, by phone at 747-6911or by 
email at lisas@cityofws.org. 
  

-35-

G-5.      DRAFT



3 

 

Summary of Fund Balances 
 

 

Home Investment Partnership Fund 
The home investment partnership fund accounts for authorized grants from the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development.  These grants are used to implement local 
housing strategies designed to increase homeownership and affordable housing opportunities for 
low and very low-income families.  Eligible uses include tenant-based rental assistance, housing 
rehabilitation, homebuyer assistance, and new housing construction.  The City draws down the 
funds after project and program expenditures have been incurred, so the balances presented in the 
table are not cash balances. 
 

LINE OF CREDIT 06-30-16 $4,029,849 
Current Commitments:  
Ridgewood Place Phase I (693,521) 
S.G. Atkins CDC East End Revitalization (541,038) 
Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing (5,000) 
Abbington Gardens (400,000) 
Habitat for Humanity Production (138,426) 
HAWS Tenant Based Rental Assistance (43,047) 
Rehabilitation Loans (110,839) 
Forsyth County (419,561) 
Housing Development Division (90,626) 
Planning (6,523) 
   Total Commitments (2,448,581) 
Unassigned Fund Balance $1,581,268  

  

-36-

G-5.      DRAFT



4 

The following are brief descriptions of each commitment listed above. 
 
Ridgewood Place Phase I 
In March 2013, the City Council approved financing to Unity Builders, Inc. to develop the 
Ridgewood Place subdivision.  In July 2015, the City Council approved assigning the development 
agreement to S.G. Atkins CDC.  Funds encumbered are to complete two houses started by Unity 
Builders and construct one house. 
 
S.G. Atkins CDC East End Revitalization 
In March 2013, the City Council approved financing to S.G. Atkins Community Development 
Corporation to acquire property, demolish structures, and construct single-family homes for home 
ownership in an area bounded by North Cleveland Avenue, Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, East 
Fifth Street, and East Belews Street.  Funds have been used to acquire property. 
 
Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing 
In April 2013, the City Council approved a developer loan for development of 64 units of 
affordable rental housing for families.  Construction is complete, and the property is leased. 
 
Abbington Gardens of Winston-Salem 
In May 2014, the City Council approved a developer loan for development of 96 units of affordable 
rental housing for families.  Construction is under way. 
 
Habitat for Humanity 
The City’s commitment has provided funding to construct single-family homes for owner-
occupancy.  Habitat is designated as HOME Community Housing Development Organization. 
 
Housing Authority of Winston-Salem Tenant-Based Rental Assistance 
The FY 15-16 budget included $240,000 for rental assistance on behalf of homeless, formerly 
homeless, disabled, and low-income individuals to be administered by the Housing Authority. 
 
Homeowner Rehabilitation Program 
The City operates a program that provides loans to homeowners to rehabilitate their homes. 
 
Forsyth County HOME Program 
HOME funds are allocated to a consortium that includes the City of Winston-Salem as the lead 
entity, Forsyth County, and all other municipalities in the county.  Forsyth County administers the 
program outside the city limits of Winston-Salem.  Funds are used for homeowner rehabilitation, 
homebuyer assistance, and program administration. 
 
Community and Business Development (CBD) Housing Development Division 
The FY15-16 budget included funds for staff and other operating costs of the Homeowner 
Rehabilitation Program. 
 
CBD Planning Division 
The FY 15-16 budget included funds for staff and operating costs for general administration of 
CDBG and HOME funds, which also include legal, advertising and consulting services. 
 
 
  

-37-

G-5.      DRAFT



5 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund: 
This fund accounts for authorized grants from the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development.  These grants are restricted to objectives of community development programs 
within specific areas of the City.  CDBG-funded programs and activities must meet one of the 
following national objectives: benefit low and moderate income persons, aid in the prevention or 
elimination of slums and blight, or meet certain community development needs having a particular 
urgency.  Eligible uses include acquisition of real property, rehabilitation of residential and non-
residential properties, provision of public infrastructure, public services, clearance, and homebuyer 
assistance.  The City draws down the funds after project and program expenditures have been 
incurred, so the balances presented in the table are not cash balances. 
 

LINE OF CREDIT 06-30-16 $2,858,894 
Current Commitments:  
CCS – Center for Homeownership (5,935) 
Construction Training Program (56,981) 
PTRC Project Re-Entry (3,313) 
The Winston-Salem Foundation (NBN) (19,767) 
Rehabilitation Loans (39,119) 
Small Business Loans (146,625) 
Housing Development Division (5,455) 
Business Development Division (10,205) 
Planning Division (7,474) 
   Total Commitments (294,874) 
Unassigned Fund Balance $2,564,020  

  

-38-

G-5.      DRAFT



6 

The following are brief descriptions of each commitment listed above. 
 
Financial Pathways of the Piedmont Center for Homeownership 
The FY 15-16 budget provided $71,220 in operating assistance for the Center for 
Homeownership, which provides one-on-one counseling and educational classes on 
homeownership. 
 
Construction Training 
The FY 15-16 budget provided $138,000 in operating assistance for the City’s Construction 
Training Program.  The balance of the program costs will come from HFF. 
 
Piedmont Triad Regional Council 
The FY 15-16 budget included $7,500 in operating assistance for Project Re-Entry, which assists 
individuals re-entering society from prison.  The balance of the $17,500 grant will come from 
HFF funds. 
 
Neighbors for Better Neighborhoods 
The FY 15-16 budget included $39,170 to The Winston-Salem Foundation in operating 
assistance for Neighbors for Better Neighborhoods to provide capacity building assistance to 
neighborhood organizations. 
 
Small Business Loan Program 
The City operates a program that provides loans to small businesses in the Neighborhood 
Revitalization Strategy Area that will result in the creation or retention of jobs. 
 
Community and Business Development (CBD) Housing Development Division 
The FY 15-16 budget included funds for staff and other operating costs of the Homeowner 
Rehabilitation Program. 
 
CDB Business Development Division 
The FY 15-16 budget included funds for operating costs of the Small Business Loan Program. 
 
CBD Planning Division 
The FY 15-16 budget included funds for staff and operating costs for general administration of 
CDBG and HOME funds, which also include legal, advertising and consulting services. 
 
 
  

-39-

G-5.      DRAFT



7 

Neighborhood Stabilization Fund 
These funds were from a federal grant from the State of NC that passed through Forsyth County. 
 

FUND BALANCE AS OF 6-30-16 $56,353  
 
Urban Action Development Fund 
The balance in this fund can be used for any housing or redevelopment purpose that complies with 
federal guidelines for these funds 
 

FUND BALANCE AS OF 6-30-16 $39,567  
 
Housing Finance Assistance Fund  
The housing finance assistance fund accounts for City funds that are used for housing development 
activities, including homebuyer assistance, new housing construction, neighborhood revitalization, 
and housing rehabilitation.  The primary sources of revenue for this fund currently come from 
housing loan repayments and investment income.  In the 1980’s and 1990’s, 20% of the Article 40 
one-half cent local sales tax was allocated to this fund, until the state budget crisis in 2002. 
 

FUND BALANCE AS OF 6-30-16 $5,830,792  
Current Commitments:  
New Housing Construction Loan Program (832,575) 
Drayton Pines (500,000) 
Union CDC Grocery (323,826) 
Brown Elementary School (319,180) 
Housing Rehabilitation Loans (236,821) 
Bethesda Center (160,000) 
Citywide Homebuyer Assistance Program (C-HAP) (141,158) 
N.C. Housing Finance Agency HELP Program (75,677) 
Other Housing Development Program Expenses (49,906) 
Youth Build Program Match (69,912) 
Gladstone Apartments Rehabilitation (50,000) 
Planning (45,698) 
Housing Loan Servicing (2,896) 
FY17 Commitments:  
NC Housing Foundation The Commons (200,000) 
Summer Youth Employment Program (175,000) 
Bethesda Center (160,000) 
Construction Training Program (68,040) 
Buy/Rehab Program (65,000) 
Housing Loan Servicing (53,000) 
Experiment in Self-Reliance VITA/EITC Program (35,600) 
Liberty East Redevelopment (31,150) 
AIDS Care Service Transitional Housing Program (30,000) 
Work Family Resource Center (25,450) 
HARRY Veterans Community Outreach Service (VCOS) (25,000) 
Experiment in Self-Reliance Transitional Housing Program (20,000) 

-40-

G-5.      DRAFT



8 

Financial Pathways of the Piedmont (20,000) 
Southside United Health Center (16,020) 
NC Housing Foundation Commons Case Management (13,350) 
Piedmont Triad Regional Council Project Re-Entry (10,000) 
National Association for Black Veterans (NABVETS) (10,000) 
United Way Ten-Year Plan to End Homelessness Administration (8,300) 
   Total Commitments (3,773,559) 
Unassigned Fund Balance $2,057,233  

 
 
The following are brief descriptions of each commitment listed above. 
 
New Housing Construction Loan Program 
This program provides loans to non-profit developers and builders working with them for new 
housing construction that will be sold for owner-occupancy.  The current commitment provides 
funding for S.G. Atkins CDC, Ridgewood Place, and Goler CDC.  This program operates like a 
revolving loan program in which the loan repayments from approved projects are reappropriated 
to provide loans for new projects. 
 
Drayton Pines 
In July 2015, the City Council approved a loan to the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem for 
rehabilitation of rental housing for low-income families. 
 
Union CDC Grocery 
The FY 13-14 Annual Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan included a 
commitment of $375,000 to Union Community Development Corporation in support of 
rehabilitation, renovations, and equipment for a grocery store.  The City’s assistance will be a 
deferred or forgiven loan. 
 
Brown Elementary School 
In August 2014, the City Council approved a loan to the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem for 
acquisition and associated environmental and other costs in support of development of 120 units 
of multi-family rental housing for the elderly.  HAWS will attempt to acknowledge and maintain 
the historic significance of the property. 
 
Housing Rehabilitation and Buy/Rehab Loans 
The City uses funds in the housing finance assistance fund to provide loans for owner-occupied 
housing rehabilitation projects or the purchase and rehabilitation of a home that are not eligible for 
HOME or CDBG funding.  The Community and Business Development Department processes 
applications for rehabilitation loans, and an internal loan committee of City staff reviews 
applications for approval.  The remaining appropriation would provide funding for this program, 
without the need to amend the budget for individual loans.  
 
Bethesda Center for the Homeless 
The FY15-16 budget provides $160,000 to Bethesda Center for the Homeless. 
 
Citywide Homebuyer Assistance Program (C-HAP) 
In addition to the New Century IDA Initiative, the City also administers the Citywide Homebuyer 
Assistance Program, which provides for first mortgage reduction, down payment assistance, and/or 

-41-

G-5.      DRAFT



9 

closing costs. 
 
N.C. Housing Finance Agency HELP Program 
The N.C. Housing Finance Agency partners with Duke Energy to provide assistance to low-income 
residents to weatherize homes.  The City has used this program as part of its housing rehabilitation 
program.  
 
Other Housing Development Program Expenses  
This commitment represents unspent balances for smaller housing and community development 
projects. 
 
Youth Build Program Match 
The City received a $1,100,000 Federal Department of Labor Youth Build Grant in September 
2012 to assist youth aged 16-24 years of age earn a diploma or GED, earn a nationally recognized 
construction certification, and increase employability.  The grant requires a $275,000 match from 
local funds.  In November 2014, the City Council approved housing finance assistance funds for 
the match. 
 
Gladstone Apartments Rehabilitation 
In April 2012, the City Council approved $76,000 in funding for the rehabilitation of Gladstone 
Apartments.  The City has paid over $25,000 for roof repairs, leaving a remaining balance of 
$50,000, which will be used for HVAC repairs and general improvements. 
 
Planning 
Funds are needed for legal advertisements and other administrative expenses associated with 
projects funded in the housing finance assistance fund.  These expenses are not eligible to be paid 
with federal funds. 
 
Housing Loan Servicing 
The City’s Revenue Division services loans that are funded from the housing finance assistance 
fund.  The division charges servicing fees to cover the cost of staff and the financial systems needed 
to track the repayment of these loans. 
 
The Commons 
The FY 15-16 budget included a commitment of $200,000 to the North Carolina Housing 
Foundation’s capital campaign for The Commons, which will provide transitional housing for high 
functioning adults on the autism spectrum, youth aging out of foster care, and homeless families 
with minor children.  The Foundation applied to the City for $400,000.  The recommendation was 
for $200,000 in FY 16 and $200,000 in FY 17, subject to City Council approval. 
 
Summer Youth Employment Program 
The FY 16-17 budget includes $175,000 in operating assistant to the Winston-Salem Urban 
League for the Summer Youth Employment Program during the summer of 2016. 
 
Bethesda Center for the Homeless 
The FY16-17 budget provides $160,000 to Bethesda Center for the Homeless. 
 
Construction Training 
The FY 16-17 budget provides $68,040 in operating assistance for the City’s Construction 
Training Program.  The balance of the program costs will come from CDBG. 

-42-

G-5.      DRAFT



10 

 
Buy /Rehab Program 
The City operates a program that provides loans to homeowners to rehabilitate their homes. 
 
Housing Loan Servicing 
The City’s Revenue Division services loans that are funded from the housing finance assistance 
fund.  The division charges servicing fees to cover the cost of staff and the financial systems needed 
to track the repayment of these loans. 
 
Experiment in Self-Reliance VITA/EITC Program 
The FY 16-17 budget includes $35,600 in operating assistance for the Experiment in Self-
Reliance’s Volunteer Income Tax Assistance/Earned Income Tax Credit Program, which provides 
free tax preparation for low-to-moderate-income families at sites throughout Winston-Salem and 
assures that those who qualify for the EITC receive it. 
 
Liberty East Redevelopment 
The FY 16-17 budget provides $31,150 in operating assistance to Liberty East Redevelopment for 
after-school and digital connection programs. 
 
AIDS Care Service Transitional Housing Program 
The FY 16-17 budget includes $30,000 in operating assistance for the Transitional Housing 
Program, which assists low-income persons with HIV/AIDS to find and maintain stable housing. 
 
Work Family Resource Center 
The FY 16-17 budget includes $25,450 in operating assistance to help families find quality day 
care. 
 
HARRY Veterans Community Outreach Services (VCOS) 
The FY 16-17 budget provides $25,000 in operating assistance to this organization.   
 
Experiment in Self-Reliance Transitional Housing Program 
The FY 16-17 budget includes $20,000 in operating assistance for the Transitional Housing 
Program, which assists families that are homeless or at risk of homelessness to find and maintain 
stable housing.  The balance of the $89,250 grant will come from CDBG funds. 
 
Financial Pathways of the Piedmont Center for Homeownership 
The FY 16-17 budget provides $20,000 in operating assistance for the Center for Homeownership, 
which provides one-on-one counseling and educational classes on homeownership.  The balance 
of the $66,750 grant will come from CDBG. 
 
Southside United Health Center 
The FY 16-17 budget provides for $16,020 in operating assistance for the Southside United Health  
 
NC Housing Foundation Commons Case Management 
The FY 16-17 budget includes $13,350 in operating assistance for case management services at 
The Commons. 
 
Piedmont Triad Regional Council Re-Entry  
The FY 16-17 budget includes $10,000 in operating assistance for Project Re-Entry, which assists 
individuals re-entering society from prison.  The balance of the $31,150 grant will come from 

-43-

G-5.      DRAFT



11 

CDBG funds.  
 
National Association for Black Veterans (NABVETS) 
 
The FY16-17 budget provides $10,000 in operating assistance to the Winston-Salem Chapter of 
NABVETS. 
 
United Way Ten-Year Plan to End Homelessness Administration 
The City provides annual operating funds for the administration of the Ten-Year Plan to End 
Homelessness. 
 
Economic Development Loan Fund  
This fund accounts for the following City economic development programs: Small Business Loan 
Program, Downtown Building Rehabilitation Loan Program, Liberty Street Corridor RUCA 
project, Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area (NRSA) Building Rehabilitation Loan 
Program, Technology Business Assistance Fund, and NRSA Demonstration projects. 
 

Fund Balance as of June 30, 2016   $  1,886,650 

Current Commitments:  
Revitalizing Urban Commercial Areas - Phase I (291,988) 
The Chronicle (99,125) 
Liberty Street Revitalizing Urban Commercial Area Project (98,741) 
NRSA Building Rehabilitation Loan Program 
SE Plaza Shopping Center 

(309,005) 
(224,000) 

Downtown Building Rehabilitation Loan Program (108,874) 
   Total Commitments (1,131,733) 
Unassigned Fund Balance $     754,917 

 
The following are brief descriptions of each commitment listed above. 
 
Revitalizing Urban Commercial Areas - Phase I 
Revitalizing urban commercial areas (RUCA) was approved by Council in 2005 to utilize $1.5 
million towards the improvement of underutilized, unutilized and blighted commercial properties.  
Funds could be for low-interest loans, matching forgivable loans, and public infrastructure 
improvements.  Funding comes from the business privilege license fees paid by electronic 
sweepstakes operations. 
 
The Chronicle 
In January 2014, the City Council approved a $100,000 small business loan to assist with the 
expansion of the business. 
 
Liberty Street Revitalizing Urban Commercial Area Project 
The remaining balance for this project comes from the repayment of a loan from a business in the 
Liberty Street corridor.  The City Council appropriated these funds for future revitalization projects 
in this area. 
 
NRSA Building Rehabilitation Loan Program 
The NRSA Building Rehabilitation Loan Program is the primary source of building improvement 
assistance to small businesses and property owners in the NRSA area.  The program provides 
direct, deferred payment loans to business owners or property owners interested in rehabilitating 

-44-

G-5.      DRAFT



12 

older buildings.  Loan money can also be used for certain interior improvements to comply with 
current building codes and for roof repairs. 
 
Downtown Building Rehabilitation Loan Program 
The Downtown Building Rehabilitation Loan Program is the primary source of building 
improvement assistance to small businesses and property owners in the downtown area.  The 
program provides direct, deferred payment loans to business owners or property owners interested 
in rehabilitating the facades of older downtown buildings.  Loan money can also be used for certain 
interior improvements to comply with current building codes and for roof repairs. 
 
Economic Development Project Fund 
This fund accounts for the City’s economic development incentive funds.  This fund supports 
specific economic development programs designed to attract new industry or encourage the 
expansion of existing businesses. 
 

Fund Balance as of June 30, 2016     $  4,761,801 
Current Commitments:  
Outstanding Incentive Projects  
Wake Forest Innovation Quarter (1,360,590) 
Caterpillar, Inc. (767,481) 
4th & Broad St Office Building (20,178) 
Hilltop House South 
Brookstown Partners 
Goler Heights 
Kailo LLC 
United Furniture Industries 
Polyvlies 
Pepsi Bottling 
Propulsion 
Winston Factory Lofts 

(26,000) 
(28,796) 
(20,000) 
(42,900) 

(100,000) 
(10,120) 
(68,750) 

(7,073) 
(9,300) 

Jobs & Technology Incentives  
Inmar 
Herbalife I 

(282,177) 
(298,284) 

Herbalife II (150,014) 
Undesignated Jobs & Technology Incentives (117,400) 
Contingency Incentives (1,069,197) 
Baseball Stadium Debt Reserve (448,500) 
Other Economic Development Initiatives         (22,400) 
   Total Commitments (4,709,360) 
Unassigned Fund Balance     $      52,441 

 
The following are brief descriptions of each commitment listed above. 
 
Outstanding Incentive Projects 
The economic development incentive projects listed in this category were approved by City 
Council action.  Under these agreements, the City will reimburse a portion of the companies’ 
property tax payments if they meet established goals for job creation and capital investment.  
Property tax revenues for these incentive payments are transferred from the general fund and paid 
out upon verification that the companies have met their goals.  The agreements include “clawback” 
provisions that require the companies to repay all or a portion of their incentive payments if the 
jobs and investment goals are not met. 
 

-45-

G-5.      DRAFT



13 

Jobs & Technology Incentives 
As part of the FY 10-11 budget, the City Council appropriated $1,000,000 of Dell Inc.’s 
reimbursement of incentive payments to provide funding to attract new technology companies or 
retain existing companies. As of June 30, 2016 there was a remaining balance of $117,400.  
 
Contingency Incentives 
The remaining balance represents funding for future economic development incentive projects.  A 
portion of the property tax payments from Caterpillar, Inc. have been credited to this program to 
restore some of the funds used to provide an upfront incentive payment to the company.  
 
Baseball Stadium Debt Reserve 
As part of the financing of BB&T Ballpark, the City established a debt reserve fund of $448,500. 
 
Other Economic Development Initiatives 
The City Council appropriated a portion of Dell Inc.’s reimbursement for other initiatives to create 
jobs and increase the tax base. 
 
Rental Rehabilitation Fund 
Fund balance in this fund is generated from federal Rental Rehabilitation Entitlement Grant funds.  
These funds can be used to match HOME program funding to augment the acquisition and 
infrastructure construction for new housing construction for home ownership 
 

FUND BALANCE AS OF 6-30-16 $1,110,993  
 
Section 108 Program 
In the late 1990’s, the City received a Section 108 loan financing for housing development projects, 
the Restaurant Row Loan Program, and development of the Brookwood Business Park.  The City 
is repaying the Section 108 loan out of it’s annual allocation of Community Development Block 
Grant funds. 
 

FUND BALANCE AS OF 6-30-16 $304,931  
 
Capital Projects Fund 
The capital projects funds account for City funds that are used for acquisition of capital assets that 
are generally greater than $50,000 and have a useful life of more than ten years, excluding most 
rolling stock.  There are multiple sources of revenue for projects in these funds.  The following 
table provides an analysis of the cash balance in the funds, taking into account current project and 
program commitments for housing and economic development projects. 
  

-46-

G-5.      DRAFT



14 

 
Economic Development Projects  

GO Bonds  
Enterprise Park Boulevard $     500,000 
Hydroponics/Help Our People Eat (HOPE) 501,300 
Brookwood Business Park Sand Filter Conversion 106,500 
Whitaker Park 4,000,000 
Police Lucia Library Study 3,000 
Economic Development Sites/Infrastructure 14,889,200 
Downtown Development/Merschel Plaza 3,000,000 
RUCA Patterson/Glenn 756,880 
RUCA  1,243,120 

 GO BondsTotal $25,000,000 
Other  

RUCA Liberty CDC $         3,011 
RUCA Washington Park 34,491 
RUCA Waughtown, Thomasville 43,686 
RUCA Projects  241,071 
RUCA Ogburn Station 268,604 
RUCA West Salem 107,260 
RUCA Peachtree/Waughtown 196,629 
RUCA Southeast Plaza Shopping Center 196,500 
Southeast Gateway Public Open Space  278,151 
Wake Forest Innovation Quarter/City Yard Study 43,804 
Downtown Business Improvement District Tree Well Fencing 622 
Downtown Property Maintenance/Signage 50,776 

 Other Total $  1,464,605 
Total Economic Development Projects $26,464,605 
  

Housing Development Projects  
GO Bonds  

 757 North $  1,250,000 
 Ujima Emmanuel Retirement Village 2,500,000 
 Ridgewood Place 650,000 
 Housing/Neighborhood Development 1,600,000 
 TURN North 800,000 
 TURN Northeast 800,000 
 TURN East 800,000 
 TURN Southeast 800,000 
 TURN South 400,000 
 TURN Other 400,000  

 GO BondsTotal $10,000,000 
Other  

 First Time Homebuyer’s Assistance $     180,488 
 Neighborhood Development - Old Cherry #2 113,298 
 Ridgewood Place  25,000 

 Other Total $     318,786 
Total Housing Development Projects  $36,783,391 
  

 
  

-47-

G-5.      DRAFT



15 

Enterprise Park Boulevard 
This project provides financial assistance to help complete construction of a portion of Enterprise 
Park Boulevard at the rear entrance of Union Cross Business Park. The road will provide access 
to some additional developable land plus provide secondary ingress and egress into the park. The 
estimated cost of the road is approximately $1.0 million, and the City’s participation is capped at 
$500,000.  
 
Hydroponics/Help Our People Eat (HOPE)  
This project provides financial assistance to Goler Community Development Corporation for a 
hydroponics/aquaponics job training facility. The facility will help train and provide employment 
opportunities for hard to place individuals as well as provide fresh fruits and vegetables to a food 
desert in the community. Of the $962,000 approved for this project, $100,000 is to be used for 
predevelopment, $385,000 is for construction-related expenses, and the remaining $477,000 will 
be used for administrative, operational, and marketing costs for the first two years of operation. 
The facility will be located at the southwest corner of Kimberley Park near the intersection of 
Northwest Crawford Place and Pittsburgh Avenue.  
 
Brookwood Business Park Sand Filter Conversion  
This project provides funding for a stormwater collection pond repair at the Brookwood Business 
Park. 
 
Whitaker Park  
In 2015, R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company announced that they would donate a large portion of 
the Whitaker Park campus, including approximately 125 acres of commercial and industrial land 
along with buildings totaling approximately 1.7M square feet to the Whitaker Park Development 
Authority.  The City of Winston-Salem has identified a critical need to install and enhance the 
infrastructure (water, sewer and roads) in the Whitaker Park Development project area while 
spurring much needed economic development on the north side of the City. The City has obligated 
$4.0 million in financial assistance that would be used towards existing building enhancements 
and infrastructure projects.   
 
Police Lucia Library Study 
This project provides funding to perform a high-level study of the adjacent property to the new 
District #2 Police Station on the feasibility of use as a library or for other business uses.   
 
Economic Development Sites and Infrastructure 
This program is funded from the 2014 general obligation bonds and provides funding for 
developing and redeveloping commercial business park sites.  Funds are generally used for land 
purchases and site infrastructure development such as grading, water and sewer line construction, 
and road construction.   
 
Downtown Development/Merschel Plaza 
This project provides funding for development of the downtown area.  Projects could include 
development of new office sites, research park sites, residential sites, and infrastructure including 
further development of Merschel Plaza.   
 
Revitalizing Urban Commercial Areas (RUCA)  
These projects provide for site improvements to businesses in targeted urban commercial areas for 
the promotion of commercial development in economically disadvantage areas.  Funds are used 
for improvements, grants, and low-interest loans to small business owners.  RUCA projects include 

-48-

G-5.      DRAFT



16 

improvements in the following areas: Liberty Street, Washington Park, Waughtown/Thomasville, 
Ogburn Station, West Salem, Peachtree/Waughtown, Southeast Plaza Shopping Center, 
Patterson/Glenn, and for other infrastructure needs.  
 
Southeast Gateway Public Open Space Projects 
The Southeast Gateway project was a redevelopment project, first envisioned in the early 1990’s, 
that sought to provide commercial and residential development along with pedestrian-friendly 
walking trails to a defined area south of downtown.  The remaining funds in these projects are 
committed by City Council for improvements and general beautification of the Southeast Gateway 
area. 
 
Wake Forest Innovation Quarter/City Yard Study Projects 
These projects provide funding for design and professional services related to the relocation of 
City Yard facilities.  Commitments in these projects may also be used to help facilitate the move 
of departments to the Lowery Street Facility. 
 
Downtown Business Improvement District Tree Well Fencing 
This project provides for the installation of tree well fencing in the Downtown Business 
Improvement District along Fourth Street between Marshall Street and Liberty Street.  
 
Downtown Property Maintenance/Signage  
This project provides funding for maintenance and upkeep of the downtown area.  Funds in this 
project are committed to enhancements and signage within the downtown district. 
 
757 North 
Permanent financing commitment for development of 115 units of rental housing to be known as 
757 North. Laurel Street Residential, LLC, is partnering with Goler Community Development 
Corporation to develop the remaining parcels in Goler’s Patterson Avenue project. The 
development will consist of 14 studio units, 83 one-bedroom, and 18 two-bedroom units.  
 
Ujima Emmanuel Retirement Village  
Permanent financing commitment for development of a 50 unit planned senior housing rental 
development to be known as Emmanuel Retirement Village. The development will be a market-
rate rental property for seniors who can live independently with no services for assisted living or 
nursing home care. The development will consist of a two story multi-family structure containing 
28 one-bedroom units, 11 duplex structures containing 22 two-bedroom units, and a community 
center for use of the complex’s residents and surrounding community. 
 
Ridgewood Place 
Additional financing for development of single-family housing in Ridgewood Place. Five of the 
homes may include some slightly larger three and four bedroom homes that can be sold to 
households that are above 80% AMI. This will require a slightly higher sales price and access to 
construction funds that do not carry the income limitations of HOME funds. 
 
Housing/Neighborhood Development 
The City Council’s Strategic Focus Area for Livable Neighborhoods includes objectives to 
improve the character and condition of neighborhoods and expand housing assistance programs. 
This project would provide rehabilitation and home improvement assistance for existing 
homeowners; financial assistance to homebuyers for acquisition of existing or newly constructed 
single-family units, with or without rehabilitation; and production of single-family units for 

-49-

G-5.      DRAFT



17 

homeownership, including land acquisition, interim construction loans, on-site improvements, 
public infrastructure improvements, and second mortgage assistance in order to make housing 
more affordable. In addition, this project would provide funding for new construction and 
acquisition and/or rehabilitation of multi-family housing that benefits lower income households 
and populations with special housing needs (e.g., elderly and disabled). This project also would 
provide for investments in the revitalization of existing neighborhoods within the 
city.  Revitalization efforts would include improvements in public infrastructure such as roads, 
sidewalks, and utilities, as well as the acquisition of properties for redevelopment. 
 
TURN 
One of the strategies identified under the City Council’s Strategic Focus Area for Livable 
Neighborhoods is the development of a program for targeted residential transformation. This 
project would provide additional financial assistance to rehabilitate single-family, owner-occupied 
or investor-owned properties. Under this program, residential properties must be located in the 
targeted focus areas within the NRSA (Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area), have an active 
Neighborhood Association currently listed with the City, and leverage private dollars. 
 
First Time Homebuyer’s Assistance 
This project has provided second mortgage assistance to first-time homebuyers to improve the 
affordability of home ownership.  This project has been funded mainly from general obligation 
bonds approved in the 2000 bond referendum. 
 
Neighborhood Development – Old Cherry #2 
This project provides for the acquisition, relocation, demolition, and property maintenance 
disposition of land acquired for redevelopment of the Old Cherry #2 area. 
 

-50-

G-5.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LOAN 

TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM  

FOR NEW HOPE MANOR  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s Consolidated Plan has a goal of supporting rehabilitation of 

substandard rental units to extend their useful economic life and preserve affordable rents; and  

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS) desires to acquire, 

demolish, and rehabilitate/repair multi-family rental housing located on Burke Village Lane, 

known as New Hope Manor; and 

WHEREAS, HAWS has requested financing for the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem authorize up to $1,600,000 in financing to the Housing Authority of 

Winston-Salem, its affiliates or assigns, for New Hope Manor, subject to obtaining all other 

sources of financing to complete the project and to the conditions contained in Exhibit A, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council authorize the City 

Manager to review and approve final loan terms and conditions, negotiate loan agreements, and 

execute contracts and documents necessary to carry out the activities herein authorized in 

substantial accordance with the form and guidelines attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

-51-

G-5.a.      DRAFT



 

-52-



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to provide a loan to the 

Housing Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS) for acquisition, demolition, and rehab of New 

Hope Manor. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 20, 2016 and amended on August 15, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following fund. 

 

Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Housing/Neighborhood Development Projects   

    New Hope Manor $1,600,000  

    2014 GO Bonds – Housing -1,600,000  

    

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $0  

 

 

SECTION 2. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-53-

G-5.b.      DRAFT



 

-54-



 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 25, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Adopt resolution authorizing the sale of certain City-owned land by private sale (N.C.G.S. 160A-
279 and 160A-514) to United Health Centers. 

Summary of Information:  
 
The City owns certain lots identified as Tax Block 0270 Lots 104, 105, 110, 111, 106A, 106B, 
107B, 108B, 109B, 001B, 002B, 003B, and 004B as shown on the Forsyth County Tax Maps. 
This property is also identified as PIN 6836-52-3201, 6836-52-2179, 6836-52-2196, 6836-52-
2049, and 6836-52-1112 as shown on the Forsyth County Tax Maps. The property is located on 
the southwest corner of Northwest Boulevard and Liberty Street and contains approximately .83 
acre. 

 

The City acquired the property in 2005 as part of the Liberty Street revitalization efforts and the 
parcel is within the Liberty Street Corridor Redevelopment Plan area. The dilapidated building 
was demolished and the property was aggressively marketed for several years for redevelopment. 
Despite several attempts to sell the property for development, there has been little interest in the 
property and those projects that expressed interest eventually fell through. 

 
A proposal has been received from United Health Centers (UHC, formerly, Southside United 
Health Center) to enter into a partnership/redevelopment agreement with the City to acquire and 
develop this property for a community health care facility. UHC is a 501(c)(3) organization and 
is the only Federally Qualified Health Center in Forsyth County with operations already in place 
on Waughtown Street and Felicity Lane. Under the proposal, UHC would redevelop the subject 
property by constructing a 20,000 square foot health care facility with the potential of serving up 
to 10,000 patients annually with the emphasis of serving economically and medically 
disenfranchised residents, including homeless individuals and families who would not otherwise 
have access to health care. In addition, the facility would provide at least two free community 
health fairs annually for residents in the community. 
 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-55-

C-1.      DRAFT



At completion, it is anticipated that the facility would support up to 40 full-time employees with 
an average wage of $67,000. 
 
The land has a current tax value of $94,700. It was appraised in 2009, and had an “as is” 
appraised value of $86,500; however, City Council previously approved selling it for $60,000 in 
2009 and for $22,500 in 2014 in an effort to spur development in the area.   
 
Under the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-279 and 160A-514(c), the City may convey property by 
private sale to any non-profit entity which carries out a public purpose and redevelopment 
purposes. As proposed, the attached resolution authorizes the City to sell the land to UHC for $1 
under the private sale provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-279 and 160A-514(c). However, the City 
would retain a deed restriction on the property for 30 years to ensure that the property is being 
used to carry out a public purpose and enter a development agreement with UHC. At the end of 
the 30 year term, the City would release the deed restriction assuming the terms of the agreement 
have been met. 
 
 

-56-

C-1.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED  

PROPERTY BY PRIVATE SALE (N.C.G.S. 160A-279 and 160A-514)  

TO UNITED HEALTH CENTERS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem is the owner of certain lots located at the 

southwest corner of Liberty Street and Northwest Boulevard and being identified as Tax Block 

0270 Lots 104, 105, 110, 111, 106A, 106B, 107B, 108B, 109B, 001B, 002B, 003B, and 004B as 

shown on the Forsyth County Tax Maps. This property is also identified as PIN 6836-52-3201, 

6836-52-2179, 6836-52-2196, 6836-52-2049, and 6836-52-1112 as shown on the Forsyth 

County Tax Maps and also being shown on Exhibit A, attached herein; and 

 WHEREAS, said parcels have a combined area of .83 acres with a tax value of $94,700 

and an appraised value of $86,500; and 

 WHEREAS, the United Health Centers (UHC) has expressed an interest in obtaining this 

property to redevelop the same by constructing a 20,000 square foot health care facility with the 

potential of serving up to 10,000 patients annually with the emphasis of serving economically 

and medically disenfranchised residents, including homeless individuals and families who would 

not otherwise have access to health care, and staff has reviewed and supports this request; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 160A-279 and 160A-514 set forth the procedures for the sale of 

certain City-owned land to non-profit entities carrying out a public purpose and the 

redevelopment of property in a redevelopment area consistent with the council adopted 

redevelopment plan; and 

 WHEREAS, the UHC meets these conditions. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, acting as a redevelopment commission, and upon the recommendation of the 

Finance Committee that the Mayor and City Council authorizes the sale of Parcel Identification 

Numbers 6836-52-3201, 6836-52-2179, 6836-52-2196, 6836-52-2049, and 6836-52-1112 as 

-57-

C-1.      DRAFT



shown on the Forsyth County Tax Maps, as herein stated, under the provisions of N.C.G.S. 

160A-279 and 160A-514(c) for $1. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City shall retain a deed restriction on the 

property for 30 years to ensure that the property is being used to carry out a public purpose.  At 

the end of the 30 year term, the City will release the deed restriction assuming the terms of the 

agreement have been met. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that the Mayor and City Council finds that the sale or 

other transfer of such land will not be prejudicial to the sale of the other parts of the 

redevelopment area nor in any other way prejudicial to the realization of the redevelopment plan. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Winston-Salem authorize the City Manager to execute the documents required to complete the 

conveyance to the UHC, or their assigns as herein stated.  

-58-

C-1.      DRAFT



-59-

C-1.      DRAFT



-60-

C-1.      DRAFT



-61-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-62-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 30, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: William L Royston, Capital Projects Planner 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Consideration of a resolution authorizing an agreement with Jordan Consultants ASLA, PA., for 
professional landscape architectural design services for the master plan development and 
construction documents of the new North Ward Park. 
 

Summary of Information:  
  
In line with the City Council’s strategic objective for expanded open space and recreation 
facilities in the North Ward, new park land was identified for development of a new park. The 
Recreation and Parks Department held two public meetings to gather input on the new park site 
location and the new park features that would be included as part of its development. New 
amenities were identified as needs by the community and include a splash pad / spray ground, 
restrooms, playground, picnic shelter, parking, and a pedestrian walking trail.  The new park 
location is 2619 Bethabara Road, consisting of +/- 4.0 acres.   On November 4, 2014, the citizens 
of Winston-Salem voted to approve the issuance of bonds for this and other recreation projects. 
 
The City selects firms to provide architectural, engineering, and surveying services in accordance 

with public policy established in N.C.G.S. §143‑64.31, which provides for a qualifications-based 

selection process.  On June 29 2016, the City received Letters of Interest/Statement of 
Qualifications to perform architectural design services from five architectural firms.  A panel 
consisting of the Capital Projects Planner, Parks Director, Assistant to the City Manager, and a 
Recreation Senior Crew Coordinator evaluated the proposals.  Based on those evaluations, the 
proposals were ranked and Jordan Consultants, ASLA, PA was rated as the most qualified firm 
to provide landscape architectural design services for the master plan development and 
construction documents of the new North Ward Park. 
 
 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 
 
 

-63-

C-2.      DRAFT



Jordan Consultants, a Winston-Salem landscape architectural firm, has provided design services 
throughout Winston-Salem and Forsyth County for commercial and governmental structures.  
For this project, Jordan Consultants has assembled a core team consisting of another local civil 
engineering firm with extensive experience with commercial sites, foundations, hydrology, 
erosion control, and project management. 
 
Jordan Consultant’s proposal meets the 10% M/WBE goal established for this professional 
service. 
 

In accordance with N.C.G.S. §143‑64.31, the City entered into contract negotiations with Jordan 

Consultants, which included identifying the full scope of services to be provided and a proposed 
fee for this work.  Based on these negotiations, Jordan Consultants has submitted a fee proposal 
of $177,400 for architectural, civil, structural, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, landscape, 
public input, bidding, construction administration, and cost estimation services needed to 
develop the North Ward Park.  Based on the total scope of services to be provided, staff believes 
that this is a fair and reasonable fee. 
 
Funds for this work are included in the bond referendum and funds have been subsequently been 
added for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

-64-

C-2.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH JORDAN CONSULTANTS, 

ASLA, PA FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE NORTH WARD PARK 

   

 

 
WHEREAS, the Winston-Salem City Council has developed a strategic objective for 

expanded open space and recreation facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Recreation and Parks Department held two public input meetings to 

gather input on a new park site located in the North Ward to include a spray ground, restrooms, 

playground, picnic shelter, parking, and pedestrian walking trail; and 

WHEREAS, on November 4, 2014, the citizens of Winston-Salem voted to approve the 

issuance of bonds for this and other recreation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the services of a professional landscape architect are needed to provide 

design plans, construction documents, and construction oversight for the development of this 

project; and 

WHEREAS, the City selects firms for professional services in accordance with public 

policy established in N.C.G.S. §143‑64.31, which provides for a qualifications-based selection 

process; and 

WHEREAS, on June 29th, 2016, the City received Letters of Interest/Statement of 

Qualifications to perform architectural design services for this project from five architectural 

firms; and 

WHEREAS, after a review of these proposals, City staff identified Jordan Consultants 

ASLA, PA as the most qualified firm to provide design services for this project; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Jordan Consultants have negotiated the full scope of 

architectural services to be provided for the design and construction of this project; and  

-65-

C-2.      DRAFT



WHEREAS, a fee of $177,400 has been negotiated with Jordan Consultants to provide 

these design and construction phase services, and that fee has been determined to be fair and 

reasonable based on the scope of services to be provided; and 

WHEREAS, the selection process and fee negotiation followed public policy established 

in N.C.G.S.  §143‑64.31; and 

WHEREAS, funds for these architectural services have been previously appropriated. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that the City Manager and City Secretary are authorized to enter into an 

agreement with Jordan Consultants, ASLA, PA for professional architectural design services for 

the development of the North Ward Park in the estimated amount of $177,400. 

-66-

C-2.      DRAFT



 
 

 
 

TO: Mayor Allen Joines and Members of the City Council  

FROM: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

DATE: August 31, 2016 

SUBJECT: East End Master Plan  

CC:  
 
 

In February 2016, Ayers Saint Gross (ASG) held a planning session with stakeholders 
and interested property owners in the area located to the east of Wake Forest 
Innovation Quarter (WFIQ) and bordered by Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, Business 
40, and US 52.  As a result of this charrette, a series of next steps were identified for 
connecting East End to WFIQ while establishing a vision for the neighborhood.   
 
This item authorizes entering into a contract with ASG to lead the planning efforts for 
East End to identify catalytic and transformative projects that support the vision and 
guide opportunities for potential public-private partnerships. Other objectives of the 
plan include: 
 
§ Aligning development with the vision for the East End and other existing plans. 
§ Engaging residents, landowners, and neighborhood institutions with development 

entities to creatively reimagine the East End and spur appropriate revitalization for 
the area. 

 
Including information gathering, community workshops and consensus building 
among the stakeholders, it is estimated to take approximately six months to complete 
the plan. City-County Planning will provide technical assistance and data collection 
assistance to ASG.  
 
Based upon direction provided by the Finance Committee, staff can prepare an item 
for City Council’s future consideration. The estimated cost for the Master Plan is 
$100,000. Should the Finance Committee support this request, staff would recommend 
using the “excess” business privilege license tax revenues that were set aside from 
electronic sweepstakes operations in the RUCA areas. These funds were also used for 
the Polo/Cherry study and the MLK/Waughtown study. The current balance in this 
fund is $290,756. 
 

 
________________________ 
Derwick L. Paige 

-67-

C-3.      DRAFT



 

-68-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 7, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Accept the Transfer of Crime Lab Equipment from 
the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office to the City of Winston-Salem for the Consolidated City-
County Forensic Services Unit. 
 

Summary of Information:  
 
As part of the adoption of the FY 2016-2017 budget, the Mayor and City Council approved an 
amendment to the City-County Cooperative Governmental Services Funding Agreement to 
include a consolidated City-County forensic services unit.  Over the last few years, 
representatives from both law enforcement agencies, as well as City and County budget staff, 
evaluated the operational and financial feasibility of creating a consolidated unit that would be 
administered by the Winston-Salem Police Department.  For the first year of the consolidation, 
the County would cover the full cost of adding five non-sworn positions, thus resulting in no net 
impact to the City’s budget.  After the first year of operation, City and County staff would 
review call data to determine a cost-sharing formula going forward. 
 
To facilitate the consolidation, the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office plans to transfer crime lab 
equipment to the City for the new consolidated City-County forensic services unit.  Exhibit A 
provides a list of the equipment that the County would transfer to the City.  The estimated value 
of this equipment totals $42,050. 
 
North Carolina General Statute 160A-280 authorizes a county to donate to another governmental 
unit within the United States any personal property including supplies, materials, and equipment 
that the governing board deems to be surplus, obsolete, or unused.  The attached resolution 
authorizes the City Manager to accept the transfer of the listed crime lab equipment from the 
Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office to the City of Winston-Salem for the new consolidated City-
County forensic services unit. 
 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-69-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-70-



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE TRANSFER 

OF CRIME LAB EQUIPMENT FROM THE FORSYTH COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

TO THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR THE CONSOLIDATED CITY-COUNTY 

FORENSIC SERVICES UNIT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of the adoption of the FY 2016-2017 budget, the Mayor and City 

Council approved an amendment to the City-County Cooperative Governmental Services 

Funding Agreement to include a consolidated City-County forensic services unit; and 

WHEREAS, over the last few years, representatives from both law enforcement 

agencies, as well as City and County budget staff, evaluated the operational and financial 

feasibility of creating a consolidated unit that would be administered by the Winston-Salem 

Police Department; and  

 WHEREAS, for the first year of the consolidation, the County would cover the full cost 

of adding five non-sworn positions, thus resulting in no net impact to the City’s budget; and 

WHEREAS, to facilitate the consolidation, the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office plans to 

transfer crime lab equipment to the City for the new consolidated City-County forensic services 

unit, as listed in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated value of this equipment totals $42,050. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, upon the recommendation of the Finance Committee and the Public Safety 

Committee, hereby authorizes the City Manager to accept the transfer of crime lab equipment 

from the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office to the City of Winston-Salem for the new consolidated 

City-County forensic services unit. 

-71-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-72-



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office Crime Lab Equipment to be Transferred to 

the City of Winston-Salem for the New Consolidated City-County Forensic Services Unit 
 
 
 

Equipment Number Estimated 

Value 

Drying Cabinet 2 $16,000 

Fingerprint Chamber 1 12,000 

Bullet Trap 2 6,600 

Down Flow Work Station 2 5,000 

Skeleton 1 1,000 

Hazmat Chemical Storage 1 650 

Infrared Digital Measurement Device 1 550 

Scene Light 5 250 

Universal Charger for Scene Light 5 0 

TOTAL ESTIMATED VALUE  $42,050 

 

-73-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-74-



 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 31, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: William L Royston, Capital Projects Planner 

Council Action Requested: 

 
Resolution authorizing the City of Winston-Salem to apply for a Parks and Recreation Trust 
Fund (PARTF) 2016 Connect NC Grant.  

Summary of Information:  
 
The Recreation and Parks Department is seeking authorization to pursue a North Carolina Parks 
and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) grant to assist in developing a universally accessible 
playground and outdoor splash pad.  In March 2016, the Connect NC Bond (CNCB) included 
one-time funding of $3 million for parks and recreation grants to benefit children and/or veterans 
with disabilities.  The grant will be applied to the new North Ward Park located at 2619 
Bethabara Road, consisting of +/- 4.0 acres. 
 
The matching grants can be used to build special facilities or adapt existing facilities that meet 
the unique needs of children and/or veterans with physical and developmental disabilities.  Local 
governments can request a maximum of $500,000 with each application and must match the 
grant with at least one dollar of local funds for every four dollars in grant funds 
 
On November 4, 2014, the citizens of Winston-Salem voted to approve the issuance of bonds for 
this and other recreation projects. 
 
It is expected that the maximum grant amount of $500,000 will be requested as part of our grant 
application and will require a match of $125,000. 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-75-

C-5.      DRAFT



 

-76-



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM TO APPLY FOR A 

PARKS AND RECREATION TRUST FUND (PARTF) 2016 CONNECT NC GRANT 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Authority, a board appointed by the Governor and 

the General Assembly, selects the applicants who will receive the grants; and  

 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem Recreation and Parks Department will complete 

the application; and 

 WHEREAS, if awarded, the Recreation and Parks Department will use the grant funding 

to assist in developing the new North Ward Park located at 2619 Bethabara Road; and 

 WHEREAS, the Recreation and Parks Department will develop a universally accessible 

playground and splash pad at the new North Ward Park; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Winston-

Salem, that the Council hereby authorizes the City Manager and the City Recreation and Parks 

Department to submit an application to the State of North Carolina Division of Parks and 

Recreation for a Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) 2016 Connect NC Grant.  

-77-

C-5.      DRAFT



 

-78-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 1, 2016 

To: Mayor Allen Joines and City Council Members 

From: Carmen Caruth, Human Resources Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into An Agreement With 
Aetna for the Provision of a Medicare Advantage Plan for Retirees 
 

Summary of Information:  
  
The City of Winston-Salem offers a Medicare Advantage health insurance plan for retirees (age 
65+) who are eligible for Medicare coverage.  This coverage supplements retirees’ Medicare 
Parts A (hospital insurance) and B (medical insurance) coverage and provides a benefit that 
closely matches the health insurance coverage provided for employees and pre-65 retirees.   
 
The current provider of this plan is UnitedHealthcare. The Medicare Advantage plan provides 
coverage for 685 retirees and 196 retiree spouses.  The premium cost for retiree coverage is 
$209.13/month/retiree, which is borne by the City.  The annual cost to provide this coverage for 
the 685 Medicare eligible retirees participating in the program is $1,719,050. Retirees’ spouses 
may sign up for this plan at the same monthly rate, with the cost of the spouse premium borne by 
the retiree or spouse.   
 
The current agreement with UnitedHealthcare expires December 31, 2016. A competitive 
proposal process was conducted to identify a plan provider for plan year 2017. Proposals were 
submitted by UnitedHealthcare, Aetna, Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North Carolina, and Humana.  
The proposals submitted by all four providers contained comparable medical plan designs.  
 
However, there was variation in the pharmacy benefits offered.  Of note are the mail order drug 
coverage and the bonus drug coverage.  All providers, with the exception of Blue Cross/Blue 
Shield provided generic mail order (90 day supply) drug coverage at a $0 copay.  Blue 
Cross/Blue Shield’s coverage for this benefit is a $25 copay.   
 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-79-

C-6.      DRAFT



With the exception of Blue Cross/Blue Shield, all other providers offered bonus drug coverage.  
Bonus drugs are drugs that are normally excluded from the Medicare Advantage plan drug 
formulary.  Drugs included on the formulary are relatively standard across provider plans, so 
coverage for these bonus drugs is important. Some examples of bonus drugs are certain classes 
of nutritional supplements, hormone replacement drugs, gastrointestinal drugs, respiratory tract 
drugs, genitourinary drugs, dermatological drugs and topical analgesics. Blue Cross/Blue Shield 
provides no bonus drug coverage. UnitedHealthcare offers coverage for 42 bonus drugs, Aetna 
covers 483 bonus drugs, and Humana covers 17 bonus drugs.  
 
There was also wide variation in the monthly premiums proposed for the plans as follows: 
 
UnitedHealthcare     $261.41/month/retiree 
Blue Cross/Blue Shield of NC $216.20/month/retiree 
Aetna     $165.58/month/retiree 
Humana    $164.65/month/retiree 
 
When all factors are considered – medical plan designs, pharmacy coverage, and premium rates, 
Aetna offers the most comprehensive coverage at the lowest premium rate.  Attached is a 
comparison of the providers’ proposals.  City staff recommends Aetna as the provider for the 
City’s Medicare Advantage post-65 retiree insurance coverage for plan year 2017. 
 
The accompanying resolution authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Aetna 
for the provision of a Medicare Advantage plan for retirees at a monthly per retiree premium rate 
of $165.58 and an annual not to exceed amount of $1,362,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-80-

C-6.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH AETNA FOR THE PROVISION OF A MEDICARE 

ADVANTAGE PLAN FOR RETIREES 

 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem offers a Medicare Advantage health insurance 

plan for retirees (age 65+) who are eligible for Medicare coverage; and  

 WHEREAS, this coverage supplements retirees’ Medicare Parts A (hospital insurance) 

and B (medical insurance) coverage and provides a benefit that closely matches the health 

insurance coverage provided for employees and pre-65 retirees; and 

WHEREAS, the current provider for this plan is UnitedHealthcare; and  

WHEREAS, the Medicare Advantage plan provides coverage for 685 retirees and 196 

retiree spouses; and 

WHEREAS, the premium cost for the retirees is $209.13/month/retiree for an annual 

premium cost of $1,719,050, which is borne by the City; and  

WHEREAS, spouse coverage is offered at the same rate, with the cost borne by the 

retiree or spouse; and 

WHEREAS, the current agreement with UnitedHealthcare expires December 31, 2016; 

and 

WHEREAS, a competitive proposal process was conducted to identify a plan provider 

for plan year 2017 and proposals were submitted by UnitedHealthcare, Aetna, Blue Cross/Blue 

Shield of North Carolina, and Humana; and  

WHEREAS, the proposals submitted by all four providers contained comparable 

medical plan designs; and 

-81-

C-6.      DRAFT



WHEREAS, the pharmacy benefits varied among the four proposals, with generic mail 

order drug coverage offered at no copay by all providers, except Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North 

Carolina who proposed this benefit at a $25 copay; and   

WHEREAS, with the exception of Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North Carolina, all 

providers proposed bonus drug coverage at varying levels, with UnitedHealthcare covering 42 

bonus drugs, Aetna covering 483 bonus drugs and Humana covering 17 bonus drugs; and 

WHEREAS, proposed monthly plan premiums per retiree varied among providers as 

follows: UnitedHealthcare $262.41, Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North Carolina $216.20, Aetna 

$165.58, Humana $164.65; and 

WHEREAS, considering all factors – medical plan designs, pharmacy coverage, and 

premium rates, Aetna offers the most comprehensive Medicare Advantage plan coverage at the 

lowest premium rate; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends Aetna as the provider for the City’s Medicare 

Advantage insurance plan for post-65 retirees for plan year 2017. 

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted for these premiums in the Retiree Benefits Fund.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Winston-Salem City 

Council, that the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement with Aetna for the 

provision of a Medicare Advantage plan for plan year 2017 at a monthly per retiree premium rate 

of $165.58 and an annual not to exceed amount of $1,362,000.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution is effective upon adoption. 

-82-

C-6.      DRAFT



-83-

C
-6.      D

R
A

FT



 

-84-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 31, 2016 

To: Mayor Allen Joines and City Council Members 

From: Carmen Caruth, Human Resources Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into an Agreement with 
North Carolina Mutual/Securian for the Provision of Employee Life Insurance 
 

Summary of Information:  
  
The City of Winston-Salem provides life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance 
coverage for benefitted employees at a coverage amount of one year’s base pay - up to $150,000.  
This coverage is provided at no cost to the employee. Employees may purchase supplemental life 
insurance at benefit amounts of one, two and three times base pay.  Additionally, they may 
purchase life insurance for their spouses at a benefit of $10,000 and children at a benefit of 
$5,000 per child.  Currently, this life insurance coverage is provided by Aetna through an 
agreement that expires December 31, 2016.   
 
The City’s benefits consultant, WillisTowersWatson, conducted a competitive proposal process 
for a life insurance vendor. Fourteen life insurance providers were invited to submit proposals 
and competitive proposals were received from the following six vendors: Aetna, One America, 
The Hartford, Metlife, Symetra, and North Carolina Mutual/Securian.  These six proposals were 
evaluated by a team consisting of the following: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager; Lisa 
Saunders, Chief Financial Officer; Kemberly Ewing, Senior Human Resources Analyst (Benefits 
Administration); and Carmen Caruth, Human Resources Director. Factors considered in the 
evaluation were completeness of proposals, providers’ financial ratings, pricing, rate guarantees, 
plan design, and responsiveness.   
 
Based on this evaluation, three providers were selected for in-person presentations and further 
evaluation – One America, The Hartford and North Carolina Mutual/Securian. The second 
evaluation considered service factors, benefits administration, expertise and reliability (years of 
 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-85-

C-7.      DRAFT



service, reference checks, staff credentials), and contract administration (evidence of insurability, 
billing, etc.).  While all three vendors provided similar proposals, One America was excluded 
based on contract administration and service factors.  They were the only vendor that was not 
willing to provide a program set-up and implementation credit ($15,000), which means that the 
City would have to bear that cost.  Additionally, the team had concerns about how evidence of 
insurability forms would be processed.  The Hartford and North Carolina Mutual/Securian both 
offered similar rates and three year rate guarantees; and both were comparable on most other 
evaluation factors.  However, North Carolina Mutual/Securian’s financial ratings, public sector 
client base, and value added services (beneficiary financial counseling, legacy planning 
resources, travel assistance services, grief resources) were superior to those of The Hartford.  
Additionally, North Carolina Mutual/Securian is a North Carolina based company headquartered 
in Durham and it is the largest minority owned life insurance company in the country. Attached 
is a spreadsheet with profiles of the three finalist vendors and their proposals.  
 
Therefore, City staff recommends approval of the accompanying resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with North Carolina Mutual/Securian for the provision of 
employee life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance in an amount not to exceed 
$230,000. Further, since North Carolina Mutual/Securian offered a three year rate guarantee, it is 
recommended that the City Manager be authorized to renew this contract for up to three years at 
the same not to exceed amount.  

-86-

C-7.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH NORTH CAROLINA MUTUAL/SECURIAN FOR THE 

PROVISION OF EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURANCE  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem provides life and accidental death and 

dismemberment insurance coverage for benefitted employees at a coverage amount of one year’s 

base pay – up to $150,000; and  

 WHEREAS, this coverage is provided at no cost to the employee; and 

WHEREAS, employees may purchase supplemental life insurance at benefit amounts of 

one, two and three times base pay, as well as life insurance coverage for their spouses and 

children; and  

WHEREAS, these life insurance coverages are provided by Aetna through an agreement 

that expires December 31, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s benefits consultant, WillisTowersWatson, conducted a 

competitive proposal process for a life insurance provider; and  

WHEREAS, of the fourteen life insurance providers invited to submit proposals, 

competitive proposals were received from the following six vendors: Aetna, One America, The 

Hartford, Metlife, Symetra, and North Carolina Mutual/Securian; and 

WHEREAS, these proposals were evaluated based on the following factors: 

completeness of proposals, providers’ financial ratings, pricing, rate guarantees, plan design, and 

responsiveness; and 

WHEREAS, based on this evaluation, three providers were selected for in-person 

presentations and further evaluation: One America, The Hartford and North Carolina 

Mutual/Securian; and  

-87-

C-7.      DRAFT



WHEREAS, the second phase of evaluation considered service factors, benefits 

administration, expertise and reliability (years of service, reference checks, staff credentials), and 

contract administration (evidence of insurability, billing, etc.); and 

WHEREAS, although all three vendors provided similar proposals, One America was 

excluded from consideration based on contract administration and service factors; and   

WHEREAS, The Hartford and North Carolina Mutual/Securian offered similar rates and 

three year rate guarantees and were comparable on most other evaluation criteria; however, 

North Carolina Mutual/Securian’s financial ratings, public sector client base, and value added 

services (beneficiary financial counseling, legacy planning resources, travel assistance services, 

grief resources) were superior to those of The Hartford; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina Mutual/Securian is a North Carolina based company 

headquartered in Durham and is the largest minority owned life insurance company in the 

country; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the City enter into an agreement with North 

Carolina Mutual/Securian for the provision of employee life and accidental death and 

dismemberment insurance for plan year 2017; and 

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted for these premiums in the Employee Benefits Fund.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Winston-Salem City 

Council, that the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement with North Carolina 

Mutual/Securian for the provision of employee life and accidental death and dismemberment 

insurance for plan year 2017 at an amount not to exceed $230,000.   

-88-

C-7.      DRAFT



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to renew 

this contract for up to three years at the same not to exceed amount, consistent with the three 

year rate guarantee provided by North Carolina Mutual/Securian.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution is effective upon adoption. 

-89-

C-7.      DRAFT



 

-90-



-91-

C
-7.      D

R
A

FT



-92-

C
-7.      D

R
A

FT



-93-

C
-7.      D

R
A

FT



 

-94-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for the Purchase and Installation of Fitness Course 
Equipment at Piney Grove Park. (North Ward) 
 

Summary of Information: 
 
One goal of the Recreation and Parks Department is to encourage healthy and active lifestyles.  
Adding a fitness course to the walking track at Piney Grove Park will further assist the local 
senior population in staying active and healthy.  Based on historical data for bidding versus 
purchase-and-install contracts, staff believes the most cost effective means for purchasing new 
fitness course equipment and materials is through a cooperative purchasing program where the 
City can buy direct and receive a discount.   
 
For Piney Grove, the selected fitness equipment is available through U.S. Communities (USC), a 
national formally organized and competitive bidding group purchasing program.  Playcore 
Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a Gametime of Fort Payne, Alabama, has been awarded competitive bid 
contract #110179.06 through USC and provides the equipment through a certified North Carolina 
authorized installer, Cunningham Associates, Inc., of Charlotte, North Carolina.  The total cost 
for the purchase of outdoor fitness equipment and turn-key installation, will be as follows: 
   
  Piney Grove Park 
 Fitness Equipment, Freight  $77,953.23 
 Discount on Equipment  (6,907.17) 
 Installation, Concrete pad, Safety surfacing 59,575.00 
 Discount on Materials  (759.92) 
 Total Cost  $129,861.14 
 
It is recommended that a contract be awarded to Cunningham Associates, Inc. in the total amount 
of $129,861.14 for the purchase and installation of playground equipment for Piney Grove Park.  
Cunningham Associates, Inc. is also a licensed general contractor. 
 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-95-

C-8.a.      DRAFT



This recommendation is in accordance with N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(3), which authorizes 
“purchases made through a competitive bidding group purchasing program, which is a formally 
organized program that offers competitively obtained purchasing services at discount prices to 
two or more public agencies.”  USC meets this criteria. 
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known area minority- or woman-owned companies that sell this 
type of equipment. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 
 

-96-

C-8.a.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND 

INSTALLATION OF FITNESS COURSE EQUIPMENT  

AT PINEY GROVE PARK 

 
 
 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(3) authorizes “purchases made through a competitive 

bidding group purchasing program, which is a formally organized program that offers 

competitively obtained purchasing services at discount prices to two or more public agencies”; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a Gametime has been awarded contract 

#110179.06 by U.S. Communities (USC), on behalf of interested public entities; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to Cunningham Associates, Inc., the certified North Carolina authorized installer, in the 

estimated amount of $129,861.14 for the purchase and installation of fitness course equipment 

for Piney Grove Park.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that a contract is hereby awarded to Cunningham Associates, Inc. in the 

estimated amount of $129,861.14 and that the City's specifications, the Company's proposal, and 

the City's purchase order will constitute the equipment purchase contract.  The City Manager and 

City Secretary are authorized to execute the installation contract on behalf of the City, with 

contract to be approved by the City Attorney. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds are available in account 30-305-533103-

56314 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-97-

C-8.a.      DRAFT



 

-98-



Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

American Total

23 12 35 0 0 0 0 35

% of 

Total 65.7% 34.3% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in 

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Exhibit A

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Purchase & Installation of Piney Grove Fitness Course

Cunningham Associates, Inc.

Charlotte, North Carolina

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-99-

C-8.a.      DRAFT



 

-100-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Miller Park Stream Restoration (Southwest Ward) 

Summary of Information: 

 

Bids were scheduled to be received August 24, 2016, for the Miller Park Stream Restoration 

project.  North Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 143-132(a) requires a minimum of three bids 

for formal construction and repair contracts; however, only two bids were offered.  Therefore, as 

authorized by N.C.G.S. 143-129, the project was re-advertised and bids were then opened on 

September 1, 2016. 

 

This project is the first phase of the deferred maintenance master plan - addressing the worst section 

of eroded stream banks.  The project scope includes erosion control, site clearing, excavation, 

grading and channel restoration, stream pumping, boulder installation, planting of wetlands 

vegetation, large tree removal, select walking path removal and relocation of the Petanque courts.  

Bids were received as follows: 

 

   City/State Total Bid  

 North State Environmental, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC $328,422.85

 Carolina Environmental Contracting, Inc. Mount Airy, NC 440,945.75 

 

The low bidder, North State Environmental, Inc., has agreed to the subcontracting goals established 

for this project of 8.1% with minority-owned businesses and 5.5% with women-owned businesses.  

It is therefore recommended that a contract be awarded to North State Environmental, Inc., the low 

bidder meeting specifications, in the total base bid amount of $328,422.85. The engineer’s estimate 

was $361,000. 

 

M/WBE comment: This project was advertised on the City’s website and several electronic plan 

rooms.  In addition, 15 specialty contractors who perform stream restoration were notified directly 

of this opportunity; eight of whom attended the pre-bid meeting. 

 

Workplace Demographics:  See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-101-

C-8.b.      DRAFT



 

-102-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  

FOR MILLER PARK STREAM RESTORATION  

 

 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 3:00 PM, Thursday, September 1, 2016, for construction of 

Miller Park stream restoration and the following bids were received: 

   City/State Total Bid  

 North State Environmental, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC $328,422.85

 Carolina Environmental Contracting, Inc. Mount Airy, NC 440,945.75 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to North State Environmental, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, for 

construction of Miller Park stream restoration in the total bid amount of $328,422.85. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that the contract for construction of Miller Park stream restoration is hereby 

awarded to North State Environmental, Inc. in the total bid amount of $328,422.85.  The City 

Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City, with 

contract and bond forms to be approved by the City Attorney. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder. The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that North State Environmental, Inc. will be required to 

subcontract 8.1% of this contract with certified minority-owned businesses and 5.5% with certified 

women-owned businesses as indicated on the Affidavit “C” submitted by the company. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and are 

available in account no. 305-533109-563204 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-103-

C-8.b.      DRAFT



 

-104-



Exhibit A

Male Female White
African-

American Hispanic Asian
Native-

American Total

42 8 50 0 0 0 0 50

% of 
Total 84.0% 16.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in the
workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this information is
not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Miller Park Stream Restoration

North State Environmental, Inc.

Winston-Salem, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-105-

C-8.b.      DRAFT



 

-106-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of a Resolution Awarding Contract for the Purchase and Installation of Playground 
Equipment for Blum Park (Northeast Ward). 
 

Summary of Information: 
 
One goal of the Recreation and Parks Department is to draw families to appealing and safe 
playgrounds across the City.  As each playground is upgraded, play surfaces are made safer and 
exciting new designs are used.  Based on historical data for bidding versus purchase-and-install 
contracts, staff believes the most cost effective means for purchasing new playground equipment 
is for the City to buy direct and avoid a general contractor mark-up. 
 
A community meeting was held to share and solicit improvement ideas.  The consensus was to 
install a new themed design playground.  Exhibit B shows the selected equipment, which has 
three separate components.  This custom equipment is not yet available under a group purchase 
program.  Miracle Recreation Equipment Co. of Monett, Missouri, provides this equipment 
through a certified North Carolina authorized dealer, Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC of 
Mooresville, North Carolina.  The cost for the purchase and installation of playground equipment 
will be as follows: 
 
  Blum Park  
 Equipment, Safety Surfacing, Freight $184,536  
 Installation     43,200   
 Subtotal Cost (*)  $227,736  
 
(*) This price does not include site preparation because the playground site is undeveloped and 
the vendor does not perform grading and drainage construction.  The City is bidding the site 
construction under a separate contract. 
 
It is recommended that a purchase order be awarded to Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC in the 
not to exceed amount of $227,736 for the purchase and installation of playground equipment for 
Blum Park.  The 2014 Capital Bond Project allocation for Blum Park is $250,000. 
 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

-107-

C-8.c.      DRAFT



 
This recommendation is based upon the provisions of N.C.G.S. 143-129(e) which provides that 
formal bid requirements do not apply to purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment when performance or price competition are not available; when a needed product is 
available from only one source of supply….” 
 
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known area minority- or woman-owned companies that sell this 
type of equipment. 
 
Workforce Demographics: see Exhibit A 

-108-

C-8.c.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND 

INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR BLUM PARK 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the selected playground equipment for Blum Park is available through 

Miracle Recreation, Inc. and a certified North Carolina authorized dealer Carolina Recreation & 

Design, LLC offers a turn-key purchase and installation; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC in the estimated amount of $227,736 for the 

purchase and installation of playground equipment for Blum Park. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that a contract is hereby awarded to Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC in 

the estimated amount of $227,736 and that the City's specifications, the Company's proposal, and 

the City's purchase order will constitute the equipment purchase contract.  The City Manager and 

City Secretary are authorized to execute the installation contract on behalf of the City, with 

contract to be approved by the City Attorney. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds are available in account 30-305-533103-

56315 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-109-

C-8.c.      DRAFT



 

-110-



Male Female White
African-

American Hispanic Asian
Native-

American Total

4 1 5 0 0 0 0 5

% of 
Total 80.0% 20.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity
in the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this
information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid
contract.

Exhibit A

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Purchase & Installation of Blum Park playground

Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC

Mooresville, North Carolina

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-111-

C-8.c.      DRAFT



 

-112-



-113-

C
-8.c.      D

R
A

FT



 

-114-



-115-

C
-8.c.      D

R
A

FT



 

-116-



-117-

C
-8.c.      D

R
A

FT



 

-118-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of a Resolution Awarding Contract for Security Officer Services for City Hall and the 
Bryce A. Stuart Municipal building. 

Summary of Information: 
 
Request for Proposals (RFP) were received August 2, 2016, to provide security officer services in 
City Hall and the Bryce A. Stuart Municipal building for an annual estimate of 6,890 hours 
utilizing Certified Company Police Officers (with arrest authority) per North Carolina Statute 
74E and the summary of proposals received based on hourly billing rates follows:  

 

 
 

Location  
Hourly 
CPO  

6,890 Hours 
Total Proposal  

Year 1 Pass-
Through Costs 

Lankford Protective   
Services, Inc. 

 Greensboro, 
NC 

 
$16.27  $112,100.30  $7,484 

North State Security 
Group, LLC 

 Winston-
Salem, NC 

 
$21.50  $148,135.00  $0 

AlliedBarton Security 
Services, LLC 

 
Raleigh, NC 

 
$23.89  $164,602.10  $24,554.83 

Per the RFP instructions, all proposals were to be submitted on the form provided for the 
estimated 6,890 hours annually.  This represents the addition of a third officer to cover the City 
Hall South Parking Deck, City Hall North Parking Lot, building exteriors, and relief of the guards 
to ensure a guard station is never left without coverage. 
 
Proposals were reviewed by the following staff:  Ryan Newcomb, Deputy Director of Property & 
Facilities Management; Carmen Caruth, Human Resources Director; Bruce Bailiff, Community 
& Business Development Housing Inspector Supervisor and Chair of the City Hall/Bryce A. 
Stuart Building Employee Safety Committee; and Officer William Burge, Winston-Salem Police 
Department Community Resources Unit.  The committee independently reviewed, evaluated, and 
scored each proposal using the attached evaluation criteria that was also included in the RFP.  
Based on the independent scores, the committee unanimously ranked the proposals in the 
following identical descending order: AlliedBarton Security Services, LLC; North State Security 
Group LLC; Lankford Protective Services, Inc. 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

-119-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



There were several aspects of AlliedBarton’s proposal that were of note to the selection 
committee.  The company has an extensive system of key performance indicators that are used to 
measure employee performance and compliance as well as customer satisfaction with their 
services.  They outlined a clear process for the City to escalate concerns with performance and a 
system of internal accountability within their organization.  AlliedBarton’s use of technology 
also stood out to the committee.  They use a software suite for logging activity, reporting 
incidents and maintenance of post orders and procedures.  Lastly, their training for new officers 
and continued training through an online training program was extensive and detailed, 
particularly with respect to customer service, dealing with aggressive behavior and de-escalation, 
and the operation of security checkpoints. 
 
Following staff review of all proposals which included detailed qualifications and references, it 
is recommended that a contract be awarded for the period of October 1, 2016 through June 30, 
2017 to AlliedBarton Security Services, LLC, the highest scored firm, in the estimated amount of 
$148,006.41 (9-month contract).  The total for a full 12-month contract in Year 1 is $189,156.93. 
 
In addition, the City has the right to extend this contract for as many as four additional twelve (12) 
month periods, provided that both parties are in agreement and funds are made available for this 
purpose. 
 
The City’s FY 2016-17 operations funds for both City Hall and the Bryce A. Stuart building 
includes sufficient funding for this service. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 
RFP Bid Package Evaluation Criteria: See Exhibit B 
 

-120-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SECURITY OFFICER SERVICES 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Request for Proposals (RFP) were received and publicly opened at 12:00 

p.m. on Tuesday, August 2, 2016, to provide security officers services in City Hall and the Bryce 

A. Stuart Municipal Building for an annual estimate of 6,890 hours utilizing Certified Company 

Police Officers (with arrest authority) per North Carolina Statute 74E, and the summary of 

proposals received based on hourly billing rates follows: 

 

 
 

Location  
Hourly 
CPO  

6,890 Hours 
Total Proposal  

Year 1 Pass-
Through Costs 

Lankford Protective 
Services, Inc. 

 Greensboro, 
NC 

 
$16.27  $112,100.30  $7,484 

North State Security 
Group, LLC 

 Winston-
Salem, NC 

 
$21.50  $148,135.00  $0 

AlliedBarton Security 
Services, LLC 

 
Raleigh, NC 

 
$23.89  $164,602.10  $24,554.83 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded for the period of October 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, to AlliedBarton Security 

Services, LLC, the highest scored firm meeting specifications, in the estimated amount of 

$148,006.41. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that the contract for security officers services in City Hall and the Bryce A. 

Stuart Municipal Building, is hereby awarded to AlliedBarton Security Services, LLC in the 

estimated amount of $148,006.41 and that all other proposals are rejected, and that the City 

Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City, contract 

forms to be approved by the City Attorney. 

-121-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Winston-Salem reserves the right to 

extend this contract for as many as four additional 12 month periods, provided that both parties are 

in agreement and funds are made available for this purpose.   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to qualifications of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and are 

available in accounts no. 011633-527105 and 011635-527105 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-122-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

829 315 424 653 34 6 11 1,144

% of 

Total 72.5% 27.5% 37.1% 57.1% 3.0% 0.5% 1.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Security Officer Services

AlliedBarton Security Services, LLC

Raleigh, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-123-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



 

-124-



 

 

           EXHIBIT B 

 

ATTACHMENT E – BID PACKAGE EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

Evaluation Criteria – proposals will be evaluated by CITY representatives using the below 

evaluation sheet.  Criteria that carry a greater value to the CITY are assigned a weighted factor.  

When used, the weighted factor assigned will be multiplied by the raw score for those criteria (1-

5) and be reflected in the Total column.   

 

PREREQUISITES 

“Pass” or “fail” ratings.  “Fail” disqualifies the bidder completely from the competition 

Quantitative Prerequisites  Pass/Fail 

Have a minimum of five years-experience providing 

armed and unarmed security officer services (Para 1.3.1) 

 

Licensed to offer armed and unarmed security officer 

services in the State of North Carolina (Para 1.3.2) 

 

Accepted the CITY’s terms and conditions (compliance 

statement) of the contract (Para 1.3.3) 

 

 

SUBMITTAL EVALUATIONS  

Scores: 1= lowest to 5 = highest, 0 = unsatisfactory answer 

Submittal item 

Score (0-5) 
Weighted 

factor 

Total  

(score times 

weighted 

factor) 

List of three engagements performed by the local 

office that will handle this contract  within the last 

five years for public sector and/or private 

organizations that included performance of similar 

services (Para 1.14.2.1) 

 

3 

 

Resume of the proposed account manager and a list 

of other accounts he/she will be responsible for 

(Para 1.14.2.2) 

 

1 

 

Number of security officers, both full and part time, 

currently managed by the CONTRACTOR office 

that will be handling this account (i.e., infrastructure 

in place to absorb CITY contract, Para 1.14.2.3). 

 

3 

 

Organization chart with contact names, direct phone 

numbers and order of escalation number of security 

officers, both full and part time, currently managed 

by the CONTRACTOR office that will be handling 

this account. (Para 1.14.2.2) 

 

1 

 

New account set-up process (Para 1.14.4.1)  2  

Process for escalating client issues through your 

organization (Para 1.14.4.2) 

 
2 

 

Provisions for supervising employees and  3  

-125-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



 

 

Submittal item 

Score (0-5) 
Weighted 

factor 

Total  

(score times 

weighted 

factor) 

monitoring work quality (Para 1.14.4.3) 

How the company defines, measures and improves 

customer satisfaction (Para 1.14.4.4) 

 
2 

 

Company maintains a 24/7 customer service center? 

(Para 1.14.4.5) 

 
3 

 

Total Proposed Contract Fee (Para 1.14.5 & 

Attachment C) 

 
3 

 

Proposed hourly wage rates to security officers 

(Para 1.14.5.1 & Attachment C) 

 
3 

 

Proposed dress and appearance standards (Para 

1.14.6) 

 
1 

 

Initial training program for all new security officers 

(Para 1.14.7.1) 

 
3 

 

Continuing training program (Para 1.14.7.2)  3  

Training program for handling restraint of disruptive 

individuals (Para 1.14.7.3) 

 
2 

 

Training program for operating security screening 

checkpoints (Para 1.14.7.4) 

 
1 

 

Forms and reports to be used for CITY facilities 

(Para 1.14.8) 

 
1 

 

Contractor –provided benefits (Para 1.14.9)  4  

Contractor’s Performance Recognition program.  1  

    

Totals    

 

-126-

C-8.d.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director  

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for One Ton Trucks with Dump Beds. 

Summary of Information:  
 
On August 26, 2016, bids were accepted for the purchase of six one ton trucks with dump beds. 
Four of these trucks are scheduled replacements for vehicles used by Vegetation Management 
and two are an expansion of service in order to provide vehicles for the newly formed Rapid 
Response teams also for Vegetation Management. See Exhibit A for vehicle replacement 
information and bid tabulation, including the make and model offered by each bidder.  Summary 
of bids received: 
 
  City/State Each Total Bid  
Piedmont Truck Center, LLC Greensboro, NC $39,543 $237,258 
Parks Chevrolet, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 41,525  249,150 
Modern Automotive Network, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 45,262 271,572    
 
The City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget includes $252,000 for this purchase; therefore, 
it is recommended that a purchase order be awarded to Piedmont Truck Center, LLC, low bidder 
meeting specifications, for the purchase of six one ton trucks with dump beds at $39,543 each in 
the total bid amount of $237,258 and that all other bids are rejected. 
 
The purchase of these trucks will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing 
Corporation.  Funding for the lease payments is available in the General Fund FY 2016-17 
budget.  
 
M/WBE comment:  Tindol Ford, a woman-owned business enterprise, was invited to bid on 
these vehicles but chose not to submit a proposal. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-127-

C-8.e.      DRAFT



 

-128-



RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR ONE TON TRUCKS 

 WITH DUMP BEDS 

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 12:00 Noon, August 26, 2016, for the purchase of four 

one ton trucks with dump beds as scheduled replacements and two one ton trucks with dump 

beds for the Rapid Response team as an expansion of service used by Vegetation Management 

and the following bids were received: 

  City/State Each Total Bid  
Piedmont Truck Center, LLC Greensboro, NC $39,543 $237,258 
Parks Chevrolet, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 41,525  249,150 
Modern Automotive Network, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 45,262  271,572 
 
 WHEREAS, City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget includes $252,000 for this 

purchase; therefore, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase order be 

awarded to Piedmont Truck Center, LLC for the purchase of six one ton trucks with dump beds 

per bid specifications at $39,543 each for the total bid amount of $237,258. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that a purchase order for six one ton trucks with dump beds per bid 

specifications at $39,543 each is hereby awarded to Piedmont Truck Center, LLC in the total bid 

amount of $237,258 and that all other bids are rejected. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase order until the purchase order is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the purchase is included in the FY 2016-17 capital 

budget and will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation with 

funding for the lease payments available in the FY 2016-17 General Fund budget. 

-129-

C-8.e.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt obligations. 

-130-

C-8.e.      DRAFT



EXHIBIT A

Vehicle# Year Make Model Mileage Acquired Cost
Repairs Over 

Life of Vehicle

8576 1996 CHEVROLET 3500HD DUMP CC 96,405 $32,121.59 $38,467.79

8526 2001 FORD F450 DUMP 109,291 $37,108.87 $27,116.75

8569 2001 FORD F450 DUMP 94,904 $40,522.14 $38,005.12

8582 2002 FORD F450 DUMP 107,620 $37,287.66 $16,978.44

Year Model Price Each Price for 6 Delivery

2017 Ford F-350 $39,543.00 $237,258.00 90-120

2017 Silverado 3500 $41,525.00 $249,150.00 90-120

2017 Silverado 3500 $45,262.00 $271,572.00 90-160

Company Name

Demographic Information 

Modern Automotive Network, LLC

Piedmont Truck Center, LLC

Parks Chevrolet

One Ton Trucks with Dump Beds

Bid Tabulation

Equipment Replacement Information

One Ton Trucks with Dump Beds

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

American Total

79 6 76 4 4 0 1 85

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity

in the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

One Ton Trucks with Dump Beds

Piedmont Truck Center, LLC

Greensboro, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-131-

C-8.e.      DRAFT



 

-132-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director  

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for Compact Pick-up Trucks. 

Summary of Information:  
 
On August 25, 2016, bids were accepted for the purchase of eight compact pick-up trucks as 
scheduled replacements for fleet pool lease vehicles. See Exhibit A for vehicle replacement 
information and bid tabulation, including the make and model offered by each bidder.  Summary 
of bids received: 
 
  City/State Each Total Bid  
Modern Automotive Network, LLC Winston-Salem, NC $21,460.00 $171,680.00  
Parks Chevrolet, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC  21,488.00  171,904.00 
Modern Automotive Network, Inc Winston-Salem, NC 22,137.00  177,096.00 
Sutherlin Nissan Mall of Ga., LLC Buford, GA 22,198.00  177,584.00 
Ginn Motor Company Covington, GA 22,828.47  182,627.76 
 
The City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget only includes $150,220 for this purchase; 
therefore, it is recommended that a purchase order be awarded to Modern Automotive Network, 
LLC, low bidder meeting specifications, for the purchase of seven compact pick-up trucks in the 
amount of $150,220 and that all other bids are rejected. 
 
The purchase of these trucks will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing 
Corporation.  Funding for the lease payments is available in the General Fund FY 2016-17 
budget.  
 
M/WBE comment:  Tindol Ford, a woman-owned business enterprise, was invited to bid on 
these vehicles but chose not to submit a proposal. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

-133-

C-8.f.      DRAFT



 

-134-

C-8.f.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR COMPACT PICK-UP TRUCKS 

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 2:00 p.m., August 25, 2016, for the purchase of eight 

compact pick-up trucks as scheduled replacements for pool lease vehicles; and the following bids 

were received: 

  City/State Each Total Bid 
Modern Automotive Network, LLC Winston-Salem, NC $21,460.00 $171,680.00 
Parks Chevrolet, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 21,488.00 171,904.00 
Modern Automotive Network, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 22,137.00  177,096.00 
Sutherlin Nissan Mall of Ga., LLC Buford, GA 22,198.00  177,584.00 
Ginn Motor Company Covington, GA 22,828.47  182,627.76 
 
 WHEREAS, City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget only includes $150,220 for 

this purchase; therefore, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase 

order be awarded to Modern Automotive Network, LLC for the purchase of seven compact pick-

up trucks per bid specifications at $21,460 each for the total bid amount of $150,220. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that a purchase order for seven compact pick-up trucks per bid specifications 

at $21,460 each is hereby awarded to Modern Automotive Network, LLC in the total bid amount 

of $150,220 and that all other bids are rejected. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase order until the purchase order is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the purchase is included in the FY 2016-17 capital 

budget and will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation with 

funding for the lease payments available in the FY 2016-17 General Fund budget. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt obligations. 

-135-

C-8.f.      DRAFT



 

-136-



EXHIBIT A

Vehicle# 664 6030 697 6021 6048 6068 6136

Year 2007 2006 2008 2008 2011 2008 2006

Make Ford Chevrolet Ford Ford Ford Ford Chevrolet

Model Ranger Colorado Ranger Ranger Ranger Ranger Colorado

Mileage 57,322 83,293 61,634 136,481 102,053 82,913 108,989

Acquired Cost $10,935.54 $10,510.47 $12,322.37 $12,104.21 $13,611.83 $12,270.91 $10,441.00

Repairs Over Life of Vehicle$17,221.18 $15,900.96 $15,386.58 $13,498.95 $13,330.29 $12,365.65 $11,440.74

Year Model Price Each Price for 8 Delivery

2017 Chevrolet Colorado $21,460.00 $171,680.00 90-120

2017 Chevrolet Colorado $21,488.00 $171,904.00 90

2017 Toyota 7162 $22,137.00 $177,096.00 130

2017 Nissan Frontier $22,198.00 $177,584.00 60

2017 Chevrolet Colorado $22,828.47 $182,627.76 60-70

Equipment Replacement Information

Compact Pickup Trucks

Workforce Demographics

Company Name

Modern Automotive Network, LLC

Parks Chevrolet, Inc.

Modern Automotive Network, LLC

Sutherlin Nissan Mall of Georgia, LLC

Ginn Motor Company

Compact Pickup Trucks

Bid Tabulation

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

American Total

725 180 761 104 29 10 1 905

% of 

Total 80.1% 19.9% 84.1% 11.5% 3.2% 1.1% 0.1%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity

in the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Compact Pickup Trucks

Modern Automotive Network, LLC

Winston-Salem, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-137-

C-8.f.      DRAFT



 

-138-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director  

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for Pick-up Trucks. 

Summary of Information:  
 
On August 17, 2016, bids were accepted for the purchase of four three-quarter ton pick-up trucks 
with utility bodies as scheduled replacements for fleet pool lease vehicles. See Exhibit A 
following the Resolution for vehicle replacement information and the complete bid tabulation 
which includes the make and model offered by each bidder.  Summary of bids received: 
 
  City/State Each Total Bid  

Piedmont Truck Center, LLC Greensboro, NC $26,494.00 $105,976.00 
Ben Mynatt Chevrolet, Inc. Concord, NC  29,568.97 118,275.88 
Modern Chevrolet, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 29,611.00 118,444.00 
Parks Chevrolet, Inc. Kernersville, NC 29,665.00 118,660.00 

 
The City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget includes $120,000 for this purchase; therefore, 
it is recommended that a purchase order be awarded to Piedmont Truck Center, LLC, low bidder 
meeting specifications, for the purchase of four three-quarter ton pick-up trucks with utility 
bodies in the total bid amount of $105,976 and that all other bids are rejected. 
 
The purchase of these trucks will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing 
Corporation.  Funding for the lease payments is available in the General Fund FY 2016-17 
budget.  
 
M/WBE comment:  Tindol Ford, a woman-owned business enterprise, was invited to bid on 
these vehicles but chose not to submit a proposal. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-139-

C-8.g.      DRAFT



 

-140-



RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR PICK-UP TRUCKS 

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 12:00 noon, August 17, 2016, for the purchase of four 

three-quarter ton pick-up trucks with utility bodies as scheduled replacements for pool lease 

vehicles; and the following bids were received: 

  City/State Each Total Bid  
Piedmont Truck Center, LLC Greensboro, NC $26,494.00 $105,976.00 
Ben Mynatt Chevrolet, Inc. Concord, NC  29,568.97 118,275.88 
Modern Chevrolet, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 29,611.00 118,444.00 
Parks Chevrolet, Inc. Kernersville, NC 29,665.00 118,660.00 
 
 WHEREAS, The City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget includes $120,000 for 

this purchase; therefore, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase 

order be awarded to Piedmont Truck Center, LLC for the purchase of four three-quarter ton pick-

up trucks with utility bodies per bid specifications at $26,494 each for the total bid amount of 

$105,976. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that a purchase order for four three-quarter ton pick-up trucks with utility 

bodies per bid specifications at $26,494 each is hereby awarded to Piedmont Truck Center, LLC 

in the total bid amount of $105,976 and that all other bids are rejected. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase order until the purchase order is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the purchase is included in the FY 2016-17 capital 

budget and will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation with 

funding for the lease payments available in the FY 2016-17 General Fund budget. 

-141-

C-8.g.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt obligations. 

-142-

C-8.g.      DRAFT



    EXHIBIT A 

Equipment Replacement Information 

3/4 Ton Pick-up Trucks 

    

Vehicle# 712 714 718 722 

Year 2000 2007 2008 2000 

Make Chevrolet Ford Ford Chevrolet 

Model 2500 Utility F250 Utility F250 Utility 2500 Utility 

Mileage 122,414 111,544 107,674 157,370 

Acquired Cost $21,077.37 $15,468.37 $17,880.00 $21,072.05 

Repairs Over Life of 

Vehicle $14,539.39 $11,599.18 $13,481.97 $15,650.12 

     

Bid Tabulation 

3/4 Ton Pick-up Trucks 

 

Company Name Year/Model Price Each  Price for 4  Delivery 

Piedmont Truck Center 2017 Ford F-250 $26,494.00 $105,976.00 90 

Mynatt Chevrolet 2017 Chevrolet 2500 $29,568.97 $118,275.88 150 

Modern Chevrolet 2017 Chevrolet 2500 $29,611.00 $118,444.00 60-120 

Parks Chevrolet 2017 Chevrolet 2500 $29,665.00 $118,660.00 90-150 

 

 

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

79 6 76 4 4 0 1 85

% of 

Total 92.9% 7.1% 89.4% 4.7% 4.7% 0.0% 1.2%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Workforce Demographics

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Three-Quarter Ton Trucks with Utililty Body

Piedmont Truck Center, LLC

Greensboro, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-143-

C-8.g.      DRAFT



 

-144-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of a Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for Computers 

Summary of Information: 
 
The City of Winston-Salem Police Department has established the need to purchase of 126 Dell 
rugged laptop computers to replace outdated units used in patrol vehicles and 93 Dell desktop 
computers with monitors to replace outdated units used by police personnel.  Dell laptop 
computers are the recommended replacement for patrol vehicles based upon standardization and 
compatibility to existing power and mounting equipment in vehicles and GPS configurations.  
The Dell desktop computers are the recommended replacement for public safety offices based 
upon standardization and compatibility to existing units used by employees.        
 
After receiving bids, the State of North Carolina awarded term contract 204-A to Dell Marketing 
L.P. for laptop and desktop computers.  The state contract price for all equipment requested is 
$543,061.77; however, by taking advantage of this bulk purchase, staff was able to improve the 
total purchase cost for all computer equipment through the local Dell Marketing representative to 
$310,314.39. 
 
It is recommended that a purchase order for 126 Dell laptop computers and 93 Dell desktop 
computers with monitors be awarded to Dell Marketing L.P. in the total amount of $310,314.39 
under and in accordance with the North Carolina State contract. 
 
This recommendation is in accordance with N.C.G.S 143-129(e)(9): "The [bidding] requirements 
of this article do not apply to...Purchases from contracts established by the State or any agency of 
the State, if the contractor is willing to extend the same or more favorable prices, terms, or 
conditions as established in the State contract" and  N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(6) (iii) “standardization 
or compatibility is the overriding consideration.”  
 
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 
 

-145-

C-8.h.      DRAFT



The purchase of this computer hardware will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal 
Leasing Corporation.  Funding for the lease payments is available in the General Fund FY 2016-
2017 budget.  
 
MWBE comment:  Dell Marketing L.P. is the sole source provider for this purchase. 
 
Workforce Demographics:  See Exhibit A 

-146-

C-8.h.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR COMPUTERS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem Police Department (WSPD) has established the 

need to purchase 126 Dell rugged laptop computers to replace outdated units used in patrol 

vehicles and 93 Dell desktop computers with monitors to replace outdated units used by police 

personnel in the Public Safety Center; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with N.C.G.S 143-129(e)(6): "The [bidding] requirements of 

this article do not apply when “standardization or compatibility is the overriding consideration”; 

and   

 WHEREAS, in accordance with N.C.G.S 143-129(e)(9): "The [bidding] requirements of 

this article do not apply to...Purchases from contracts established by the State or any agency of 

the State, if the contractor is willing to extend to a political subdivision of the State the same or 

more favorable prices, terms, or conditions as established in the State contract"; and    

 WHEREAS, after receiving bids, the State of North Carolina awarded contract 204-A to 

Dell Marketing L.P. for computer equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, Dell Marketing L.P. has offered laptop and desktop computers and 

monitors to the WSPD at a more favorable price, terms, and conditions than the state contract; 

and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase order be 

awarded to Dell Marketing L.P. for 126 Dell laptop computers and 93 Dell desktop computers 

with monitors be awarded to Dell Marketing L.P. in the total amount of $310,314.39 under and 

in accordance with the North Carolina State contract for use by the WSPD. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that a purchase order for 126 Dell laptop computers and 93 Dell desktop 

-147-

C-8.h.      DRAFT



computers with monitors for use by the WSPD is hereby awarded to Dell Marketing, L.P. total 

amount of $310,314.39, and that the City’s specifications, the vendor’s offer, and the City 

purchase order shall constitute the contract. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase order until the order is duly executed by the City. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that funds are available on a lease agreement with the 

North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation to cover the cost of this purchase order. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt obligations. 

-148-

C-8.h.      DRAFT



-149-

C-8.h.      DRAFT



 

-150-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for Motorola Radios for the City of Winston-
Salem Fire Department. 

Summary of Information: 
 
The City of Winston-Salem Fire Department (WSFD) has a need to purchase 28 Motorola 
APX8000XE radios for immediate use. The additional radios would add safety to firefighting 
operations by providing a radio for each individual on the truck.  The additional radios would 
reduce the chance of a firefighter being separated from their team during firefighting operations. 
 
Motorola Solutions, Inc., provider of the Motorola APX8000XE radios used by WSFD, has 
submitted a quotation to provide the 28 radios at a cost of $6,193 each.  The FY 2016-17 capital 
equipment budget includes $189,000 for this purchase; therefore, it is recommended that a 
purchase order be awarded to Motorola Solutions, Inc. for the purchase of 28 Motorola 
APX8000XE radios in the total amount of $173,404. 
 
This recommendation is based upon provisions of N.C.G.S. 143-129(e) which provides that 
formal bid requirements do not apply to purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment when performance or price competition are not available;  when a needed product is 
available from only one source of supply; or when standardization or compatibility is the 
overriding consideration.” 
   
This purchase will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation.  
Funding for the lease payments is available in the General Fund FY 2016-17 budget 
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known area minority or woman-owned companies that sell 
these radios.  
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-151-

C-8.i.      DRAFT



 

-152-



RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR MOTOROLA RADIOS  

FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem Fire Department (WSFD) has the immediate 

need to purchase 28 Motorola APX8000XE radios; and 

 WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions, Inc., provider of the Motorola APX8000XE radios 

used by WSFD, has submitted a quotation to provide the 28 radios at a cost of $6,193 each; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(e) provides that formal bid procedures “shall not apply 

to purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment when performance or price 

competition for a product are not available; when a needed product is available from only one 

source of supply; or when standardization or compatibility is the overriding consideration”; and; 

and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase order be 

awarded to Motorola Solutions, Inc. for 28 Motorola APX8000XE radios at a cost of $6,193 

each for the total amount of $173,404. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that a purchase order for 28 Motorola APX8000XE radios is hereby awarded 

to Motorola Solutions, Inc. in the total amount of $173,404 and that the City’s specifications, the 

vendor’s offer, and the City purchase order shall constitute the contract. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase order until the order is duly executed by the City. 

-153-

C-8.i.      DRAFT



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the purchase is included in the FY 2016-17 capital 

budget and will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation with 

funding for the lease payments available in the FY 2016-17 General Fund budget. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt obligations. 

 

-154-

C-8.i.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Male Female White

People of 

Color Total

4900 2000 4900 2000 0 0 0 6900

% of 

Total 71.0% 29.0% 71.0% 29.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in the

workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this information is

not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Motorola Radios

Motorola Solutions, Inc.

Atlanta, GA

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-155-

C-8.i.      DRAFT



 

-156-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for a Fire Pumper Truck. 
 

Summary of Information: 
 
Winston-Salem Fire Department (WSFD) has the need to purchase one fire pumper truck.  The 
new truck will replace truck #19, a 2001 Spartan/Quality pumper with 150,019 miles and has 
amounted $177,332 of repair and maintenance costs over its life.  On August 13, 2015, Houston-
Galveston Alliance Cooperative received bids for fire service apparatus and The Sutphen 
Corporation has been awarded competitive bid contract #FS12-15 product code DDC04 
specifications for this equipment and offers the fire pumper truck at a cost of $488,054.36. 
 
N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(3) authorizes “purchases made through a competitive bidding group 
purchasing program, which is a formally organized program that offers competitively obtained 
purchasing products and services at discount prices to two or more public agencies.” 
 
It is recommended that a purchase order be awarded to The Sutphen Corporation for the purchase 
of one fire pumper truck per bid contract #FS12-15 product code DDC04 specifications in the 
total amount of $488,054.36.  This recommendation is in accordance with N.C.G.S. 143-
129(e)(3). 
 
The City’s FY 2016-17 capital equipment budget includes $490,000 for this purchase which will 
be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation.  Funding for the lease 
payments is available in the General Fund FY 2016-17 budget. 
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known area minority or woman-owned companies that sell this 
equipment. 
 
Workforce Demographics:  See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  
 

 

-157-

C-8.j.      DRAFT



 

-158-



RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER  

FOR A FIRE PUMPER TRUCK 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Winston-Salem Fire Department (WSFD) has the need to purchase one fire 

pumper truck to replace truck #19, a 2001 Spartan/Quality pumper with 150,019 miles and has 

amounted $177,332 of repair and maintenance costs over its life; and 

 WHEREAS, on August 13, 2015, Houston-Galveston Alliance Cooperative received 

bids for fire service apparatus and The Sutphen Corporation has been awarded competitive bid 

contract #FS12-15 product code DDC04 specifications for this equipment and offers the fire 

pumper truck at a cost of $488,054.36; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(3) authorizes “purchases made through a competitive 

bidding group purchasing program, which is a formally organized program that offers 

competitively obtained purchasing products and services at discount prices to two or more public 

agencies”; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase order be 

awarded to The Sutphen Corporation for one fire pumper truck per bid contract #FS12-15 

product code DDC04 specifications in the total amount of $488,054.36. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that a purchase order is hereby awarded to The Sutphen Corporation for one 

fire pumper truck per bid contract #FS12-15 product code DDC04 specifications in the total 

amount of $488,054.36, and that the bid specifications, the company’s proposal, and the City's 

purchase order will constitute the contract. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualifications of the bidders.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase order until the purchase order is duly executed by the City.  

-159-

C-8.j.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the purchase is included in the FY 2016-17 capital 

budget and will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation with 

funding for the lease payments available in the FY 2016-17 General Fund budget. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of debt obligations.  

-160-

C-8.j.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

224 22 234 2 0 1 0 246

% of 

Total 91.1% 8.9% 95.1% 0.8% 0.0% 0.4% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Fire Pumper Truck

The Sutphen Corporation

Dublin, OH

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-161-

C-8.j.      DRAFT



 

-162-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: September 19, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
Consideration of Items Related to Renovations to Fire Stations #7 and #9: 

A. Adoption of Resolution Awarding Construction Contract for Fire Stations #7 (100 Arbor 
Road in West Ward) and #9 (4685 Ogburn Avenue in Northeast Ward). 

B. Project Budget Ordinance Amendment to Appropriate Additional Funds. 
 

Summary of Information: 
 

The City of Winston-Salem advertised for bids for construction of renovations to Fire Stations #7 
and #9.  The project involves construction of a new double engine bay at Fire Station #7 and new 
single engine bay at Fire Station #9, significant living quarters renovations, mechanical and other 
facility upgrades, new driveways, and associated site work.  These renovations will allow more 
personnel and vehicles to be assigned to each station.  Bids were received on August 19, 2016, as 
follows: 
 Total Total of 
   City/State Base Bid Accepted Alternates 
 R.P. Murray, Inc. Kernersville, NC $3,058,000 $14,000 
 Bar Construction Co., Inc. Greensboro, NC 3,073,700 16,200 
 J.G. Coram Co., Inc. Mount Airy, NC 3,189,375  12,000 
 Hayco Construction, LLC Pilot Mountain, NC 3,676,917  7,800 
 

The low bidder, R.P. Murray, Inc., has agreed to subcontracting goals of 13.95% with minority-
owned businesses and 2.25% with women-owned businesses, exceeding those established for this 
project; therefore, it is recommended that a contract be awarded to R.P. Murray, Inc., the low 
bidder meeting specifications, for the total base bid plus all alternates except G1 in the estimated 
amount of $3,072,000.  The architect’s revised estimate for this project was $3,338,463. 
 

An amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance is attached which appropriates additional funds 
to supplement the funds currently available in the project budget to complete this project. 
 

M/WBE comment: This project was advertised on the City’s website and iSQFT electronic plan 
room.  Additionally, 51 general contractors and 27 M/WBE subcontractors were notified directly 
of this opportunity.  No M/WBE contractors offered a bid. 
 

Workplace Demographics:  See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-163-

C-9.      DRAFT



 

-164-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  

FOR FIRE STATIONS #7 AND #9  

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 2:00 p.m., Friday, August 19, 2016, for construction of Fire 

Stations #7 and #9 renovations and the following bids were received: 

 Total Total of 
   City/State Base Bid Accepted Alternates 
 R.P. Murray, Inc. Kernersville, NC $3,058,000 $14,000 
 Bar Construction Co., Inc. Greensboro, NC 3,073,700 16,200 
 J.G. Coram Co., Inc. Mount Airy, NC 3,189,375  12,000 
 Hayco Construction, LLC Pilot Mountain, NC 3,676,917  7,800 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to R.P. Murray, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, for construction of Fire 

Stations #7 and #9 renovations in the base bid plus accepted alternates total amount of 

$3,072,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that the contract for construction of Fire Stations #7 and #9 renovations is 

hereby awarded to R.P. Murray, Inc. in the base bid plus accepted alternates total amount of 

$3,072,000.  The City Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on 

behalf of the City, with contract forms to be approved by the City Attorney, and bid deposit 

retained until the successful bidder has delivered satisfactory contract and performance and 

payment bonds. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder. The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. The bid deposit may be retained if the 

bidder fails to execute the contract or give satisfactory surety as required by N.C.G.S. 143-129. 

-165-

C-9.a.      DRAFT



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that R.P. Murray, Inc. will be required to subcontract 

13.95% of this contract with certified minority-owned businesses and 2.25% with certified 

women-owned businesses as indicated on the Affidavit “C” submitted by the company. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and are 

available in account no. 302-532102-516401 for Station #7 and in account no. 302-532102-

516403 for Station #9 to cover the cost of this contract.  A project budget amendment follows the 

Resolution allocating the additional funding to complete this project. 

-166-

C-9.a.      DRAFT



Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

American Total

13 2 12 0 3 0 0 15

% of 

Total 86.7% 13.3% 80.0% 0.0% 20.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in 

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Exhibit A

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Fire Stations #7 and #9 Renovations

R. P. Murray, Inc.

Kernersville, North Carolina

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-167-

C-9.a.      DRAFT



 

-168-



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-

2017 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to transfer funds 

between public safety projects and to use contingency funds for the construction of fire stations. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 20, 2016 and amended on August 15, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following funds. 

Capital Projects Fund 
 

 Public Safety    

    2014 GO Bond – Fire Station #7 $150,000  

    2014 GO Bond – Fire Station #9 827,000  

    2014 GO Bond – Fire Station #8 -500,000  

    

 Capital Improvement Reserve   

    Capital Contingency -150,000  

  
 

  

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $327,000  

  
 

  
 Leasing Capital Projects Fund 

 
 Public Safety    

    Project Balances -$327,000  

    Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 327,000  

  
 

  

 Total Leasing Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $0  

    
 

SECTION 2. That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

Capital Projects Fund 

 Public Safety Projects   

    Fire Station #9   

       Transfer from Leasing Capital Projects Fund $327,000  

    

 Total Capital Projects Fund Revenues $327,000  

SECTION 3. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

-169-

C-9.b.      DRAFT



effective as of the date of adoption. 

-170-

C-9.b.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: September 19,2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Lisa M. Saunders, Chief Financial Officer 

Council Action Requested: 

 
Consideration of Resolution Accepting the Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Tax Settlement and 
Adoption of an Order to Collect Current Taxes for 2016 (Fiscal Year 2016-2017) and 
Delinquent Taxes from 2007 through 2015. 

 

Summary of Information:  
 
The accompanying resolution accepts the City-County Tax Collector’s Annual Tax Settlement 
by the City Council of the City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina, for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2016.  The resolution also orders the City-County Tax Collector to collect the 2016 current 
taxes (Fiscal Year 2016-2017) and delinquent taxes for 2007 through 2015. 
 
The Tax Collector’s Annual Tax Settlement includes the following information: 

 Amount 
Billed 

Amount 
Collected 

Percentage 
Collected 

Real and Personal Property Taxes, net of releases $106,577,086.51  $105,495,013.16   98.98% 

Personal Property Taxes on Vehicles, net of releases 9,423,733.84 9,423,205.34 99.99% 

Vehicle Registration Fees, net of releases 2,712,855.00 2,698,131.20 99.46% 

Downtown Business Improvements District 511,877.70 510,528.49 99.74% 

Total Property Taxes and Vehicle Registration Fees $119,225,553.05 $118,126,878.19 99.08% 

   

The total collection percentage of 99.08% is more than the FY2015 rate of 98.95%.  The 
collection and billing of personal property taxes and fees on registered motor vehicles is now 
done through the State’s Vehicle Tax System.  Attached is Exhibit A which lists the collection 
amounts and percentages for the past five years.  We recommend approval of the attached 
resolution. 
 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-171-

C-10.      DRAFT



 

-172-



RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 ANNUAL 

TAX SETTLEMENT AND ADOPTION OF AN ORDER TO 

COLLECT CURRENT TAXES FOR 2016 (FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017) 

AND DELINQUENT TAXES FROM 2007 THROUGH 2015. 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem, 

North Carolina, that the following are accepted: 

(1) Settlement of 2015 tax accounts as of June 30, 2016. 

(2) Settlement of 2006 through 2014 tax accounts and 2015 tax accounts as of June 

30, 2016, and collections for July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that an order be 

executed by the Mayor and City Secretary that authorizes, empowers, and commands the City-

County Tax Collector to collect the taxes to be set forth in the 2016 tax records filed in the office 

of the City-County Tax Collector, the unpaid 2015 taxes charged and assessed, together with 

adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records which are made in accordance with law, 

and the remaining unpaid real estate and personal property taxes set forth in the 2007 through 

2014 tax records filed in the office of the City-County Tax Collector. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that such taxes are 

hereby declared to be the first lien on all real property of the respective taxpayers in the City of 

Winston-Salem, North Carolina; and this order shall be full and sufficient authority to direct, 

require, and enable the Tax Collector to levy on and sell any real property, and attach wages 

and/or other funds, of such taxpayers for and on account of unpaid taxes, in accordance with law. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and City 

Council of the City of Winston-Salem that this resolution and order shall be and remain in full 

effect after its adoption and execution as of July 1, 2016. 

-173-

C-10.      DRAFT



 

-174-



ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA, 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH N.C.G.S.§ 105-321 AND § 105-373 

 

 

 

NORTH CAROLINA ) 

 ) 

FORSYTH COUNTY ) 

 

 

To: John T. Burgiss, RES 

 City-County Tax Collector 

 

 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes to be set forth in the 

2016 tax records filed in the office of the City-County Tax Collector, the unpaid 2015 taxes 

charged and assessed, together with adjustments, changes, and additions to the records as 

provided by law, and the remaining unpaid real estates and personal property taxes as set forth in 

the 2007 through 2014 tax records filed in the office of the City-County Tax Collector. 

 

Such taxes are hereby declared to be the first lien on all real estate of the respective taxpayers in 

the City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina; and this order shall be full and sufficient authority to 

direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell any real or personal property, and attach wages 

and/or other funds, of such taxpayers for and on account of unpaid taxes, in accordance with law. 

 

This resolution and order shall be and remain in full effect after its adoption and execution as of 

July 1, 2016. 

 

ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina, on the 

_____ day of ____________2016. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

  J. Allen Joines, Mayor 

  City of Winston-Salem 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Melanie Johnson, City Secretary 

 

-175-

C-10.      DRAFT



 

-176-



Exhibit A

Fiscal

Year Billed % Billed % Billed % Billed % Billed %

2012 94,702$  93,360$  98.60   6,414$   5,525$   86.15   2,550$ 2,061$ 80.80    -$     -$       103,666$  100,946$ 97.40    

2013 99,691    98,484    98.80   6,949     5,940     85.50   2,567   2,061   80.30    109,207    106,485   97.50    

2014 97,906    96,725    98.80   10,203   9,703     95.10   3,407   3,168   93.00    111,517    109,596   98.30    

2015 99,518    98,369    98.85   8,596     8,593     99.96   2,686   2,669   99.37    534       530         99.26 111,334    110,161   98.95    

2016 106,577  105,495  98.98   9,424     9,423     99.99   2,713   2,698   99.46    512       511         99.74 119,226    118,127   99.08    

CollectedCollectedCollected

(in thousands)

Totals

Collected Collected

Annual Tax Settlement

Property Tax  Property Taxes Registration Fees

Real & Personal Vehicle Personal Vehicle

Improvements District Tax

Downtown Business 

-177-

C
-10.      D

R
A

FT



 

-178-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 31, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of Amendments to the FY 2016-17 Budget Ordinances for the City of Winston-
Salem, North Carolina. 

Summary of Information:  
 
The proposed amendments to the FY 2016-17 budget ordinances authorize adjustments for the 
following purposes.  
 

Appropriation of Grants and Other Revenues Received 

o  The City has received checks from insurance companies totaling $21,920 related to 

accidents involving fire department apparatus where another, non-City, driver was 

found to be at fault.  These funds are appropriated in the Fire Department’s budget 

to make repairs resulting from the accidents. 

o  Of the $15 fee charged on the property tax bill on each registered motor vehicle, $5 

per vehicle (authorized in February 2006) is appropriated in the capital projects and 

Winston-Salem Transit Authority (WSTA) funds with one-third allocated for transit 

operations, one-third for non-vehicular transportation projects (such as greenway 

and sidewalk development), and one-third for vehicular transportation projects 

(such as traffic calming and other traffic safety projects). The proposed amendment 

appropriates $36,650 in additional revenues received in FY 2015-2016 for non-

vehicular and vehicular transportation projects. The one-third for transit operations 

has already been allocated. 

 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

  

-179-

C-11.      DRAFT



Downtown Parking Analysis 

 

o  On June 20, 2016, the Mayor and City Council approved a resolution authorizing 

the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Kimley-Horn for professional 

engineering services for a downtown parking analysis. This study will expand on a 

previous study initiated by the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership and 

completed in 2005 and will include an assessment of the current parking conditions 

and an analysis of future parking needs in the downtown area. Approximately 60% 

of the study will look at off-street parking. The proposed amendment appropriates 

$124,200 in parking fund reserves for the off-street parking portion of the analysis.  

 

Winston-Salem Classic 

 

o  Winston-Salem State University will hold the inaugural “Winston-Salem Classic” 

from September 15-17, 2016 in conjunction with the university’s home football 

game against Virginia Union University.  Events will include the “Youth 

tRAMSformation Tour” for over 700 seventh graders from across the county to 

learn academic concepts, the Winston-Salem Classic Banquet honoring Coach 

William “Bill” Hayes, and the We See Red Block Party featuring games, vendors, 

exhibition booths, community group performances, radio personalities, and food 

trucks.  The City is providing a financial sponsorship for the Winston-Salem 

Classic, as well as in-kind assistance with a social media marketing campaign.  In 

addition, the City plans to reserve at least one table for elected officials for the 

banquet.  The proposed amendment appropriates $12,500 in occupancy tax funds to 

help offset the cost of the Winston-Salem Classic Banquet and transportation for the 

seventh graders’ trip to campus. 

 

-180-

C-11.      DRAFT



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX LEVY 

ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017  
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that the 

Annual Appropriation and Tax Levy Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to 

cover changes in the following funds as described herein. 

SECTION 1.   That the Annual Appropriation and Tax Levy Ordinance of the City of 

Winston-Salem, adopted on June 20, 2016 and amended on August 15, 2016, shall be further 

amended by changing the expenditure appropriations in the following funds. 

 

General Fund 

 Public Safety   

   Fire Department   

     Vehicle Repairs  $21,920 

    

 Total General Fund Expenditures  $21,920 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

 Occupancy Tax Fund   

   Winston-Salem Classic  $12,500 

    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Expenditures  $12,500 

 

Enterprise Funds 

 Parking Fund   

   Downtown Parking Analysis  $124,200 

    

 Total Enterprise Funds Expenditures  $124,200 

 

SECTION 2.   That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

 

-181-

C-11.a.      DRAFT



General Fund 

Public Safety   

  Fire Department   

    Recovery from Insurance  $18,490 

 
Fund Balance Appropriation  3,430 

   

Total General Fund Revenues  $21,920 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

 Occupancy Tax Fund   

   Fund Balance Appropriation  $12,500 

    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Revenues  $12,500 

 

Enterprise Funds 

 Parking Fund   

   Fund Balance Appropriation  $124,200 

    

 Total Enterprise Funds Revenues  $124,200 

 

SECTION 3.   That this amendment to the Annual Appropriation and Tax Levy 

Ordinance shall become effective as of the date of adoption. 

-182-

C-11.a.      DRAFT



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to cover changes in the 

following fund as described herein. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 20, 2016 and amended on August 15, 2016, shall be amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following fund. 

 

Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Transportation Projects    

    Greenway Development $23,810  

    Downtown Traffic Cabinet Relocation 6,420  

    Traffic Calming Projects 6,420  

    

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $36,650  

 

 

SECTION 2. That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

Capital Projects Fund 

    

 Transportation Projects   

    Motor Vehicle Privilege Tax $36,650  

    

 Total Capital Projects Fund Revenues $36,650  

 

SECTION 3. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-183-

C-11.b.      DRAFT



 

-184-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 24, 2016 

To: The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Michelle McCullough, Historic Resource Officer, Historic Resources Commission 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of an ordinance for Local Historic Landmark Designation of the John L. and Emma J. 
Gilmer House, 605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem (Tax Block 1151, Lots 010, 011, 012, 
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, and 020D/PIN # 6834-08-7013) and a portion of an unopened 
alley. 
 

Summary of Information:  
Local Historic Landmark Designation is a program administered by the Historic Resources 
Commission (HRC). Landmark designation is authorized by N.C. law and signifies recognition 
that a property is important to the heritage and character of the community and that its protection 
enriches the community’s residents.   The effects of landmark designation are as follows: (1) the 
property owner must have plans reviewed and approved by the Historic Resources Commission; 
and, (2) the owner of a landmark property may apply for an annual property tax deferral of up to 
50% for as long as the property’s important historical features are retained. 
 
An application has been submitted by Richard W. Sickles for the complete exterior and interior 
of the John L. and Emma J. Gilmer House and the entire property upon which it sits and a 
portion of an unopened alley, excluding the swimming pool, garden shed, and greenhouse at 605 
West Cascade Avenue in Winston-Salem (Tax Block 1151 Lot 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 
016, 017, 018, 019, and 020D/PIN #6834-08-7013.)  The current tax value of the property is 
$627,400 and the tax office will calculate the new tax value with a reduction based on the 
amount of the building that is designated. The HRC held a public hearing on the application on 
July 6, 2016, and recommended approval. 
 
Since that date, the HRC has reviewed the criteria for landmark designation set by the state, and 
the documentation required locally for landmark applicants.  A new application form specifying 
additional details which more specifically address the criteria was approved on August 16, 2016, 
and will apply to all future landmark applications, as explained further in an attached memo. 
  

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

  

-185-

C-12.      DRAFT



John L. and Emma J. Gilmer 

The Forsyth County Historic Resources Commission finds that the property meets Sections B 
and C of the Local Historic Landmark designation guidelines.  The property is a significant 
example of Forsyth County’s history, architecture and culture that possesses integrity of location, 
design, setting, material, workmanship, feeling, and association.  
 
The Gilmer House was built at its current location in 1929 for John L. and Emma J. Gilmer, 
replacing their circa 1903 home on the site, which was destroyed by fire.  The Gilmers owned 
the home until 1948.  The current owner is the third owner of the property.   The original lot was 
16 acres but is now 3.32 acres.  The house was designed by the Winston-Salem architectural firm 
of Northup and O’Brien, and the Fogle Brothers of Winston-Salem constructed the house.  The 
cast-iron fountain is original to the Gilmer property, but was located in the former garden on the 
south side of Cascade Avenue.  When that portion of the property was sold after John Gilmer’s 
death, the fountain was moved to its present location.  The house has no additions, however, at 
some point prior to 1983, the porch at the rear of the house was enclosed to enlarge the kitchen.   
Mr. Sickles, the third owner, updated the kitchen and pantry, finished the unfinished basement 
and attic, replaced the existing radiator heat with a central HVAC system, enlarged the dormer at 
the rear of the house, and added a gabled dormer to the attic-level bedroom.   In 1989, a tornado 
took fifty-two trees on the property, damaging the perimeter chain-link fence and uprooting trees 
behind the house.  After the tornado, Mr. Sickle replanted many trees, replaced the chain-link 
fence with an ironwork picket fence, installed an in-ground swimming pool with a stone patio 
that matched the stones on the existing walkway, and replaced two windows at the rear of the 
living room with a double-leaf French door.  The garden shed and greenhouse construction dates 
are unknown, but it is speculated they are from 1948-1983. 
 
This house meets Guideline B of the Local Historic Landmark designation guidelines because it 
is associated with John Lash Gilmer who was significant in the development of Winston-Salem’s 
commerce for nearly half a century.  In 1893, Mr. Gilmer left the University of North Carolina to 
come to Winston-Salem to run his father’s mercantile business, Gilmer, Marler and Company.   
In 1901, after being joined by his brother Powell, the business’ name was changed to Gilmer 
Brothers Company, with John Gilmer serving as president.  His contribution to the development 
of Winston-Salem’s local commerce included: a retail and wholesale dry goods business; a 
cotton mill shipments and commission business; the early development of automobiles sales and 
related automotive businesses in Winston-Salem; the development of both commercial and 
residential real estate with a particular focus on the expansion of commerce along West Fourth 
Street; a chain of retail department stores in North Carolina, South Carolina, and Virginia; and 
the establishment and expansion of the Camel City Coach Company that extended over a 
multistate territory until merging with Atlantic Greyhound Lines, of which he was vice-president 
and sales manager.  The house is the best physical manifestation of his overall accomplishment 
and status in the community. 
 
This house meets Guideline C of the Local Historic Landmark designation guidelines because it 
embodies the distinctive architectural characteristics of the Colonial Revival style and is an 
excellent representation of the residential work of the distinguished and prolific Winston-Salem 
architectural firm of Northup and O’Brien.   The 605 West Cascade Avenue home was built to 
have a commanding presence on the hilltop setting overlooking Washington Park and is well 
preserved, in excellent condition, and a well-articulated example of the Colonial Revival style on 
both the exterior and interior.   
 

-186-

C-12.      DRAFT



ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN PROPERTY 

AS A HISTORIC LANDMARK 

 

 WHEREAS, all of the prerequisites to the adoption of this ordinance as prescribed by 

Chapter 160A, Article 19, Part 3C of the North Carolina General Statutes have been met; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Forsyth County Historic Resources Commission has submitted a report, 

which is incorporated herein by reference, and recommends after a separate public hearing that 

the property described below be designated a historic landmark; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council after a separate public hearing finds that the property 

described herein is of historical, architectural, and/or cultural significance, and the property's 

preservation should be encouraged, and that the qualifying elements exist as set forth in the 

Historic Resources Commission report: 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem as follows: 

 

Section 1.   The following described property is hereby designated a historic landmark:  John 

L. Gilmer and Emma J. Gilmer House, 605 West Cascade Avenue, specifically: 

the complete exterior and interior of the John L. and Emma J. Gilmer House and 

the entire property upon which it sits and a portion of an unopened alley, 

excluding the swimming pool, garden shed, and greenhouse at 605 West Cascade 

Avenue in Winston-Salem (Tax Block 1151 Lot 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 

016, 017, 018, 019, and 020D/PIN #6834-08-7013.)  This property is owned by 

Richard W. Sickles. 

 

Section 2.   The review process provided by law shall be observed prior to demolition, 

alteration, rehabilitation, or removal of the designated property. 

 

Section 3.   This ordinance shall be effective from and after its adoption. 

 

-187-

C-12.      DRAFT



 

-188-



W CASCADE AV

PARK BV

PARK BV

W BANNER AV

DINMONT ST

PARK
BV

LEONARD ST

PARK BV

VINTAGE AV

W CASCADE AV

FREEMAN ST

SALEM CREEK

Scale: 1" represents 200'
July 6, 2016

Historic Resources
Commission

John L. and Emma J.
Gilmer House

PIN: 6834-08-7013.00
(Tax Block: 1151

Tax Lots: 010, 011, 012,
013, 014, 015, 016, 017,

018, 019, 020D)
and a portion of an

unopened alley

605 W Cascade Avenue

Printed: 8/10/2016  Planning and Development Services \pl
an

nin
g\H

ist
ori

c\L
oc

al_
Hi

st_
La

nd
ma

rks
\LH

L_
no

mi
na

tio
ns

\LH
L_

Jo
hn

Em
ma

Gi
lm

erH
ou

se
.m

xd
  K

W
E

-189-

C
-12.      D

R
A

FT



 

-190-



John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House 

605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem 

Tax Block 1151, Lots 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 

and 020D  

PIN #:  6834-08-7013   
 

 

 

-191-

C-12.      DRAFT



John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House 

605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem 

Tax Block 1151, Lots 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 

and 020D  

PIN #:  6834-08-7013   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-192-

C-12.      DRAFT



John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House 

605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem 

Tax Block 1151, Lots 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 

and 020D  

PIN #:  6834-08-7013   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-193-

C-12.      DRAFT



John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House 

605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem 

Tax Block 1151, Lots 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 

and 020D  

PIN #:  6834-08-7013   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-194-

C-12.      DRAFT



John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House 

605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem 

Tax Block 1151, Lots 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 

and 020D  

PIN #:  6834-08-7013   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-195-

C-12.      DRAFT



 

-196-



 

 

 

TO: Mayor Allen Joines and Members of the City Council 

FROM: A. Paul Norby, Director of Planning and Development Services 

DATE: August 31, 2016 

SUBJECT: Revisions Made to Local Historic Landmark Application and 

Explanation of Criteria by the Historic Resources Commission 

Local Historic Landmark Designation is a program administered by the Forsyth County Historic 

Resources Commission. Landmark designation is authorized by North Carolina law and signifies 

recognition that a property is important to the heritage and character of the community and that 

its protection enriches the community’s residents.  The North Carolina State Historic 

Preservation Office establishes the criteria for Landmark designation. 

 

The effects of landmark designation are as follows: (1) the property owner who wishes to make 

changes to a designated landmark property must first have the plans reviewed and approved by 

the Historic Resources Commission; and, (2) the owner of a landmark property may apply for an 

annual property tax deferral of up to 50% for as long as the property’s important historical 

features are retained. 

 

The Historic Resources Commission created a subcommittee to review the criteria for Landmark 

designation and confirm that the criteria meets the requirements created and established by the 

NC State Historic Preservation Office.  A revised application form outlines the specific 

individual criterion that must be addressed and the documentation necessary to support the 

criterion.   

 

The Historic Resources Commission on August 16, 2016 reviewed and approved the criteria and 

revised application unanimously.  Proposed Landmark applications received by the Historic 

Resources Commission after August 16, 2016 will be required to use the new application.   

 

Although the criteria and procedures to be followed in designating Local Historic Landmarks are 

prescribed by the State, cannot be changed, and must be followed by the Historic Resources 

Commission, the final decision on whether to grant Local Landmark status remains with the 

elected body.  The new application retains the required specific significant and integrity criteria, 

however, it now requires a quantifiable demonstration of how these two criterion are met.  The 

applicant is also required to submit a higher level of evidence of the historic items of the 

property as part of the application.  Only the portions of the Landmark that meet the criteria will 

be recommended for designation and it will only be this portion of the property that will receive 

the property tax deferral. 

 

A copy of the approved revisions is attached. 

 

 

-197-

C-12.      DRAFT



 

-198-



1 

 

 

CRITERIA 

 

�  Property Over Fifty 
Years Old 
 
Fifty years is a general 
estimate of the time needed 
to develop historical 
perspective and to evaluate 
special significance.   
 
 
(Complete Sections A, B, & 
C) 

 

 

�  Property Under Fifty 
Years Old 
 
Evidence of exceptional 
importance is required. 
 
 
 
 
 
(Complete Sections A, A.1, 
B, and C) 
 

 

�  Relocation 
 
The building has been 
moved from its original site of 
construction. 
 
 
 
 
 
(Complete Sections A, B, 
and C) 
 

 

�  Reconstruction 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Complete Sections D 
and E) 
 

 
A.1  Historical Significance 

 
Special Significance Area (Check All That Apply):  

 

 

� history 

 

� architecture 

 

� culture  

 

� archaeology 

 
Significance Category (Check All That Apply): 
   

� A. Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 
patterns of our history 
 

� B. Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past 
 

� C. Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of 
construction, or that represents the work of a master, or that possesses high artistic values, 
or that represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack 
individual distinction  
 

� D. Property has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history 
 

 
A.2 Exceptional Importance  
 
Fifty years is a general estimate of the time needed to develop historical perspective and to evaluate 
special significance.  This consideration guards against the listing of properties of passing contemporary 
interest and ensures that the landmark is truly a historic place.  If the property is less than fifty years old, 
it must possess a level of significance greater than if it were more than fifty years old, that is, it must 
possess exceptional significance. 
 
If applying for a property constructed less than fifty years ago, the criteria in Section A above as well as 
those below must be met.    

 

� 

 
1. The property was constructed less than fifty years ago and is exceptionally important.   

As defined by the National Park Service, exceptional importance does not necessarily 
mean national significance; rather, it is a measure of a property’s importance within the 
appropriate historic context, whether the geographic scale of that context is local, state, or 
national.    

 

� 

  
2. The property was constructed fifty years or more ago but achieved its exceptional 

importance less than fifty years ago.   
 

-199-

C-12.      DRAFT



2 

 

 

 
A.  Integrity 
The property has integrity if its significance can be seen or experienced, not just imagined.  
 

Must meet at least five (5) of the criteria listed below:  
 
Check the applicable boxes below. 
 

 

� 
1.  Integrity of location – The historic location where the building was original constructed. 

 

� 

2.  Integrity of design – The historic organization of form, space, proportion, scale, technology 
and materials can be seen or experienced.  

 

� 

3.  Integrity of setting – The physical environment related to the property’s function, role, or 
design retains its historic character and its significance can be seen or experienced.  
 

 

� 

4.   Integrity of workmanship – The physical evidence of a craft or crafts of the culture or people 
during the period of significance of the property can be seen or experienced.   

 

� 

5.  Integrity of materials – The majority of historic materials that were combined to form the 
property have been preserved and not recreated, other than appropriate maintenance and 
repairs.    

 

� 

6.  Integrity of feeling – The historic or aesthetic sense of the property’s period of significance 
can be experienced because its physical features evoke a sense of its historical character.  

 

� 

7. Integrity of association – The property is the location of a significant activity or event, or is 
the place where a significant person lived or engaged in significant historic actions. The property 
is sufficiently intact to allow such connection to be experienced. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

-200-

C-12.      DRAFT



3 

 

 

B. Report Material and Layout 

Architectural Description, Significance & Integrity Statements 

Applications must include a report that includes items 1-7, and item 8 and 9 if applicable.   Submit a clear, concise, 
complete narrative so that the HRC will be able to make a decision. 

� 

 
1. Introduction 

Include a clear statement summarizing the property’s significance and integrity level in 
two to four sentences.    
 

� 

 
2. Property Description 

Include a comprehensive description of all elements of the site proposed for designation.  
The description should delineate significant character-defining features of the setting, 
exterior, interior, and secondary resources. 

 

� 

 
3. Restoration/Rehabilitation Description (Completed or Currently Proposed) 

Include information about any restoration and/or rehabilitation efforts, additions, and/or 
alterations, including details of the date and scope of work.  Include whether the work 
was completed under the supervision of an of experienced preservation professional or 
historic preservation organization.   
   

� 
 

 
4. Statement of Significance 

Include a statement of significance that explains in detail how the property meets the 
relevant criteria identified in the Significance section above (A).  Clearly define the 
special significance of the property for each.  Include all major owners and names of 
people known or believed to have worked on the structure (such as architects, carpenters 
etc.).  A bibliography is required.  Include an ownership chain of title, showing all known 
owners with deed book and page and other relevant documentation if the property is 
significant for its association with a historically significant person. 
 

 

� 
 

 
5. Integrity Statement 

Include a statement of integrity that explains in detail how the property meets the relevant 
criteria in the Integrity section above (B).  Clearly define the level of integrity for all 
significant physical elements of the proposed property to be designed, including the 
exterior, interior, outbuildings, and/or the site.  Explain how the property retains elements 
of its original or early design, materials, location, workmanship, setting, historic 
association and feeling. 

 

 

 
6. Historical Background Summary 

Include an explanation of the property’s place, time, and theme:, i.e. the context in the 
history of the community, the region, the state, or the nation.  Once this is identified, 
show how the property relates to other properties that fall into that same context if the 
property is important due to its association with events that have made a significant 
contribution to the broad patterns of our history.  

 

-201-

C-12.      DRAFT



4 

 

 

 
7. Architectural Context  

If the property is of architectural significance include biographical information for the 
architect(s) if known and explain why their work is important at the local, state, and/or 
national level.   
 

� 

 
8. Approved National Register Nomination 

If a National Register nomination for this property has been approved and is still 
accurate, specifically the description of the property, it may be submitted with the 
application form and other supporting documents; however, any special significance 
areas and/or integrity issues not included in the nomination must be addressed in 
supplemental information.  Subsequent alterations must be submitted in photographs and 
other documentations to explain all changes in detail.  This could include, but is not 
limited to, Federal and/or State Historic Preservation Tax Credit applications and 
approvals for Parts 2 and 3, along with a written summary of changes made since the 
nomination was approved. 
 

� 

 
9. Exceptional Importance Statement 

Attach a statement explaining how the property meets the identified criteria in the 
Exceptional Importance Section above (A.2.)  
 

 

-202-

C-12.      DRAFT



5 

 

 

 
C. RECONSTRUCTED PROPERTIES 
 

 
The HRC will consider landmark applications only for reconstructions located in locally zoned Historic 
Districts (H), such as Old Salem or Bethabara.  This does not include Historic Overlay Districts (HO), 
such as West End. 
 
After the passage of fifty years, a reconstructed property may attain special significance for what it 
reveals about the period in which it was built, rather than the historic period it was intended to depict.   
If that is the case, complete sections A, B, and C, not D and E.    
 
Reconstruction is defined as the reproduction of the exact form and detail of a vanished building, 
structure, object, or a part thereof, as it appeared at a specific period of time.  Examples include:  a 
property in which most or all of the fabric is not original or of historic period.   Examples of properties 
that are NOT considered reconstructions are properties that have been remodeled or renovated and 
retain the majority of their original or early fabric. 
 
The HRC will not designate a reconstructed property that necessitated or contributed to the demolition 
or relocation of a historic property which has been recommended for local designation by the HRC, is 
listed on the State Study List for the National Register of Historic Places, has been determined eligible 
for or is listed in the National Register of Historic Places and /or has any other type of local, State, or 
national historic designation. 
 
Must meet all the criteria below. 

 

� 
 

 
1. It is accurately executed in a suitable environment. 

 
The reconstruction must be based upon sound archaeological, architectural, and historic 
data concerning the historic construction and appearance of the resource.  That 
documentation should include both analysis of any above or below ground material and 
research in written and other records. 
 
The reconstructed property must be located on the original site as the original.  It must also 
be situated in its original grouping of buildings, structures, and objects (as many as are 
extant), and that grouping must retain integrity.  In addition, the reconstruction must not be 
misrepresented as an authentic historic property.  One approach to signify a reconstruction 
is to place a small sign that states the building is a reconstruction. 
 

 

� 
 

 
2. It is presented in a dignified manner as part of a restoration master plan. 

 
A restoration master plan is defined, for the purposes of this application, as a 
comprehensive or far-reaching written plan of action, encompassing a locally-zoned 
Historic District (H), and approved by a community, government, or organization/institution, 
and is designed to reintroduce something that existed before, specifically historic 
buildings or structures. 
 
A reconstructed property must be identified in the restoration master plan as a component 
of that historic district and part of the overall restoration plan for the district. 

-203-

C-12.      DRAFT



6 

 

 

 

� 
 

 
3. No other building or structure with the same associations has survived. 

 
A reconstruction is appropriate only if the historic property was the only one in the district 
associated with a particular activity or event of special significance or no other property with the 
same associative values has survived. 

 

 
D.  RECONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION 
 
In order to be considered, the HRC must determine if there is enough information supporting the accuracy 
of the reconstruction, so that there could be a truly accurate portrayal. 
 

 
Reconstruction Documentation  
 

 

            � 
 

 
1. Attach a report that explains in detail how the property meets each criterion 

identified in Section D. above.  Include text, drawings, photographs, historic 
documents and other evidence as necessary.   

  

 � 
 

 
2. A detailed history of the historic building or structure represented in the 

reconstruction.    
Include: 
Date(s) of original construction, early additions and pertinent alterations 
Date of demolition  
Year reconstruction represents and reason that date was selected 
History of original owners  
History of the original use(s), including that of the interpretation period  
Current use of reconstructed property 
Location of the historic building or structure 
Description of the interpretive use that coordinates with the restoration master 
plan 

  

 � 
 

 
3. A detailed architectural description of the historic building or structure and of the 

reconstructed building or structure. 
Include the following in the descriptions of both the historic building or 
structure and of the reconstructed building or structure when known: 
Size of the building or structure 
Number of stories 
Material(s) of construction 
Construction method(s)  
Appearance of the building or structure including the placement of such 
features as doors and windows 
Detailed drawings of significant features reconstructed, such as architectural 
details, roofs, windows, doors, and porches 
Elevations noting known elements and/or features  
Elevations noting elements and/or features changed from the original 
Notation of reconstructed elements surmised from study but not known 
Explanation of approach when details or features were unknown 
Site plan or survey  

-204-

C-12.      DRAFT



7 

 

 

 
Reconstruction Research Documentation Types 

 
A detailed report indicating thorough research and analysis of the below documentation types must be 
submitted.  The report should include substantive information on the research gathered and sources.  
Resources searched but revealing no pertinent information must be discussed in the report.  Copies of 
visual materials such as, but not limited to, photographs, maps, drawings, plans, and artwork should be 
labeled, with title, description, known or approximate year created, known or possible creator, and source. 
 

  

 � 
 

 
1. A copy of the section(s) of the restoration master plan pertinent to the subject 

property.  Include the cover, date, and summary pages or sections that describe 
the purpose, approach, and physical boundaries of the plan. 
 

  

 � 
 

 
2. Evidence that the historic property on which the reconstruction was based was 

the only one in the district associated with a particular activity or event of special 
significance or that no other property with the same associative values has 
survived. 

 

 

 � 
 

 
3. Written archival records, including but not limited to diaries, journals, letters, 

deeds, legal documents, other primary sources and secondary sources. 
 

 

 � 
 

 
4. Relevant historic photographs or artwork.  

 

  

 � 
 

 
5. Relevant historic plans and/or drawings. 

 

  

 � 
 

 
6. Archaeological findings.  

 
 

  

 � 
 

 
7. Any other historical information used as a basis for the reconstruction.  

 
 

 
 
 

-205-

C-12.      DRAFT



 

-206-



SUMMARY OF MINUTES 
 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

4:30 p.m., Monday, August 8, 2016 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 
 

Room 239, City Hall 
__________________________________________ 

 
 COMMITTEE MEMBERS:  Council Member Denise D. Adams, Vice Chair 
     Council Member Vivian H. Burke 
     Council Member Derwin L. Montgomery 
 
 OTHERS PRESENT:  Council Member Jeff MacIntosh 
     Council Member Molly Leight 
     Council Member James Taylor, Jr. (arrived at 5:42 p.m.) 
     Council Member Dan Besse (arrived at 6:06 p.m.) 
     Mayor                 Allen Joines 
 
Vice Chair Adams called the meeting to order and stated without objection, the Committee 
would first consider the Consent Agenda. Council Member Montgomery pulled Items C-2 and 
C-4 for discussion. No other items were removed. 
 
 Council Member Montgomery made a motion to approve the balance of the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was duly seconded by Council Member Burke and carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Property Matters 
 
C-1.   RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF PERMANENT AND  
   TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS FOR  THE WINSTON LAKE 
   GOLF COURSE WATER LINE PROJECT BY  DEED OR  CONDEMNATION 
              (NORTHEAST WARD). 
 
Community and Economic Development 
 
C-3.   RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FUNDING TO HABITAT FOR   HUMANITY OF  
     FORSYTH COUNTY, INC. FOR REHABILITATION OF A DUPLEX ON NORTH  
   CHERRY STREET (NORTH WARD). [$65,000]. 
 
Environmental Health 
 

-207-

C-13.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 8, 2016 Page 2 
 
C-5.  RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A NORTH CAROLINA CLEAN WATER STATE   

REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE SOUTH FORK INTERCEPTOR, KERNERS 
MILL FORCE MAIN AND PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS. [$11,699,526]. 

 
C-6. RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A NORTH CAROLINA CLEAN WATER STATE 

REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE SANITARY SEWER EVALUATION 
STUDIES AND COLLECTION SYSTEM REHABILITATION PROJECTS. 
[$12,861,396]. 

 
Finance/Budget 
 
 C-7. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2016-2017. 

 
C-8. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REGARDING REYNOLDS PARK ROAD BRIDGE 

REPLACEMENTS: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL 
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR 
REYNOLDS PARK ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT - Morton 
Thomas and Associates, Inc. -  $527,033.66 (Estimated Amount). 

 
b. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 

REYNOLDS PARK ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT - Smith-
Rowe, LLC - $3,321,112.06 (Estimated Amount).  

 
C-9. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATING TO CONTRACTS: 

 
a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SIDEWALK 

CONSTRUCTION ALONG GERALD STREET (EAST WARD) - Mayes 
Landscaping and Concrete, Inc. - $108,875 (Estimated Amount). 

 
b. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR HEPA FILTER 

MAINTENANCE - EVO Corporation - $82,295 (Estimated Amount). 
 

c. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND 
INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT AT CRAWFORD PARK 
(NORTHEAST WARD) AND REYNOLDS PARK (SOUTHEAST WARD) - 
Barrs Recreation, LLC - $199,546.65. 

 
d. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR FURNITURE AT THE 

LOWERY STREET BUILDING (EAST WARD) - Delve Interiors, LLC -
 $214,003.52. 

 
e. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR AUDIO/VIDEO 

EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION AT THE LOWERY STREET 

-208-

C-13.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 8, 2016 Page 3 
 

BUILDING (EAST WARD) - Clark-Powell Associates, Inc. - $107,146.03. 
 

f. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR SPEX FINGERPRINT 
SYSTEM UPGRADE - Horiba Jobin Yvon, Inc. - $39,500. 

 
g. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR TANDEM AXLE 

DUMP TRUCKS - White’s Tractor and Truck Co., LLC - $1,357,716. 
 

h. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR FRONT LOADING 
REFUSE TRUCKS - Piedmont Peterbilt, LLC - $482,856. 

 
i. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR REAR LOADING 

REFUSE TRUCK - Piedmont Peterbilt, LLC - $159,619. 
 

j. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR SCOW BED DUMP 
TRUCKS - White’s Tractor and Truck Co., LLC - $335,400. 

 
k. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR RADIOS AND THE 

SALE OF TRADE-IN PROPERTY FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM 
FIRE DEPARTMENT -  Motorola Solutions, Inc. - $32,884.20. 

 
l. RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR RENOVATIONS TO FIRE 

STATION #7 (WEST WARD) AND FIRE STATION #9 (NORTHEAST 
WARD).   

 
General Government 

 
  C-2.      RESOLUTION APPROVING A PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT 

 WITH WHITAKER PARK DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, INC. IN      
ACCORDANCE WITH N.C.G.S. 143-128.1C (NORTH WARD). 

 
   Mr. Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager, gave the staff presentation on this item. 
 
   In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Paige stated the City has made the Whitaker 
   Park Development Authority aware of their need to adhere to the contracting goals and   

MWB/E participation through the bidding process as normally established. 
 
   Council Member Montgomery made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly 

seconded by Council Member Burke and approved unanimously. 
 
 C-4. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO THE BROWN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL SITE (EAST WARD): 
 

a. RESOLUTION TO RESCIND PERMANENT FINANCING FOR THE BROWN 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL SITE. 

 

-209-

C-13.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 8, 2016 Page 4 
 
Mr. Larry Woods, Chief Executive Officer, of the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem, gave a                                
presentation on this item. 
 
 

In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Woods stated there has been no change in 
direction for the Senior Building. The Raleigh/North Carolina Housing Administration only 
receives six to nine submissions on a year. Our goal is to put in a submission for this year, but we 
were not successful in meeting all the requirements. We had to go in a different route in terms of 
how we would bring in a developer because we knew we needed an enhancement for the nine 
percent tax credit. We believe we have that enhancement in hand and now we are seeking a 
developer. 
 

Mr. Woods stated HAWS presently is not seeking any financial support from the City; however, 
they may request a letter of support for our project. We became aware of the allocated funds 
recently when discussing the item today. We own the property and we are in compliance. Mr. 
Ritchie Brooks requested HAWS send a letter formerly requesting the funds be re-allocated 
according to the City Council’s desires. 
 
In response to Council Member Burke, Mr. Lee Garrity, City Manager, explained City Council 
can choose to re-allocate the funds to different projects. If so and at a later date HAWS comes 
back, the City would have to check availability. The bond monies are limited currently. 
 
In response to Council Member Burke, Mr. Woods stated the application process runs January 
through March and he will not know if they will need funds until May or June of 2017.  
 
Mr. Paige stated there is a process where projects may anticipate the need for funds and a 
commitment could be requested earlier to allocate future funding. In this case, HOME Funds 
may be an option. 
 
Council Member Adams requested a structure be put in place to provide updates on the status of 
projects i.e. financial. She noted other projects need funding currently. 
 
In response to Council Member MacIntosh, Mr. Woods stated the only delay HAWS had is with 
the submission of the tax credit. There is only one submission a year; HAWS missed the 2016 
deadline but he stated that HAWS does not need funds from the City because it received funding 
from a prior project that did not work out two years ago.  
 
Council Member Burke made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member Adams and was carried with two in favor and one opposed. Council Member 
Adams and Council Member Burke in favor and Council Member Montgomery opposed. 
 
GENERAL AGENDA 

 
G-1. CONSIDERATION OF AN ITEM RELATED TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO 

GOLER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COPORATION: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LAND LEASE AT KIMBERLEY PARK 

-210-

C-13.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 8, 2016 Page 5 
 

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO GOLER COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION TO DEVELOP A HYDROPONICS/ 
AQUAPONICS JOB TRAINING FACILITY (NORTH WARD). [$962,000]. 

 
Mr. Paige gave the staff presentation on this item. 
 
Mr. Michael Suggs, Goler Community Development Corporation, 889 N. Liberty Street, 
Winston-Salem, North Carolina, gave a brief presentation on this item. 
 
Council Member Burke made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 
 

b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 
THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
G-2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS TO A PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT WITH CATERPILLAR 
INC. 

 
Mr. Paige gave the staff presentation on this item. 
 
In response to Council Member Burke, Mr. Eric Newkirk, Caterpillar Inc., stated that presently 
there are 80 employees with Caterpillar locally that reside in Winston-Salem and more than half 
of them live in Forsyth County.  
 

 He stated, there are a variety of jobs available and the requirements vary based upon the   
 Job. 
 
In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Newkirk stated Caterpillar currently has a 
total of 250 employees.  
 
Council Member Adams requested additional information on contract jobs versus the full-time 
jobs. The Council would like to see more jobs offered at Job Fairs represented by Caterpillar Inc. 
 
Council Member Burke made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member Montgomery. The motion carried with Council Members Burke and Adams 
voting in favor and Council Member Montgomery abstaining from the vote. 
 
 
G-3. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS AUTHORIZING A LOAN TO THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR NEW HOPE MANOR (NORTHEAST 
WARD): 

 
a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LOAN TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR NEW HOPE MANOR. [$1,700,000]. 
 

-211-

C-13.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 8, 2016 Page 6 
 
Mr. Ritchie Brooks, Director of Community Development and Housing, gave the staff 
presentation on this item. 
 
 
 

b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 
THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
In response to Council Member Leight, Mr. Brooks stated you only find an owner for an order to 
repair after the order has been issued the unfit conditions are not repaired within the time frame 
specified in the order, and the unit is still occupied. We have a minimum housing code that only 
requires the minimum. When you repair minimally, it is difficult to maintain it to a standard 
position and over a period of time it falls back into disrepair. 
 
Council Member Burke made a motion to forward this Item to Council without a 
recommendation. The motion was duly seconded by Council Member Adams. The motion was 
carried with Council Members Adams and Burke in favor and Council Member Montgomery 
abstaining. 
 
G-4. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTING 

SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM. 
 
By consensus, the Committee agreed to hold this item until its September meeting. 
 
G-5. CONSIDERATION OF AN ITEM RELATED TO THE  ALLOCATION OF 

ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE PATTERSON/GLENN AREA: 
 

a. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ALLOCATION OF ADDITIONAL 
REVITALIZING URBAN COMMERCIAL AREA (RUCA) III MATCHING 
FUNDS FOR THE PATTERSON/GLENN AREA (NORTHEAST WARD). 
[$202,100]. 
 

b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 
THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
Mr. Brooks gave a staff presentation on this item.  
 
In response to Council Member MacIntosh, Mr. Brooks stated there will not be room for parking 
on the street in front of the building. Parking will be available on each side of the entrance. 
 
In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Brooks stated the City is working with two 
other applicants to the north of this project; one is being partially funded and seeking additional 
funds while the other applicant is seeking funding to repair the roof of the establishment. 
 
Council Member Montgomery made a motion to approve this item. This motion was duly 
seconded by Council Member Adams and approved unanimously. 

-212-

C-13.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 8, 2016 Page 7 
 
 

  
 
G-6. RESOLUTION RESCINDING THE APRIL 18, 2016 RESOLUTION OF THE 

WINSTON-SALEM CITY COUNCIL EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR THE 
ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 
REHABILITATION AND EQUIPPING OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT (ROLLING HILLS APARTMENTS). 

 
By consensus, the Committee agreed to hold this item until its September meeting. 
  
G-7. RESOLUTION APPROVING GRANTS FROM SUCCESSFUL OUTCOMES 

AFTER RELEASE (SOAR) CONTINGENCY FUNDING. 
 
  Mr. Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager, gave the staff presentation on this item. 
 
  Council Member Burke made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by  
  Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 
 
  At the request of Council Member Taylor of the Public Safety Committee, this item will be 
further discussed in the Public Safety Committee. 

 
  ADJOURNMENT: 6:10 p.m. 
 

-213-

C-13.      DRAFT



 

-214-


	AGENDA
	GENERAL AGENDA
	**
	G-1. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM. [$125,000]
	[Investment Consulting - CARF.docx]
	[Investment Consulting- Resolution.docx]
	[Investment Consulting - Exhibit A Cash and Investments.pdf]
	[Investment Consulting - Exhibit B  Workforce Demographics.pdf]

	G-2. RESOLUTION AMENDING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF ISSUANCE OF MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS - ROLLING HILLS (EAST WARD)
	[Rolling Hills Bond Inducement Amendment - CARF .docx]
	[Rolling Hills Bond Inducement Amendment - Resolution.docx]

	G-3. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTION - SALEM FOR THE  FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 (FEDERAL HOUSING FUNDS).
	[September 2016 Budget Amendment - CARF - Federal Housing Funds.doc]
	[September 2016 Budget Amendment - PBO - Federal Housing Funds.docx]

	G-4. CONSIDERATION OF  MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENTS  WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM:
	[Rental Assistance CARF.doc]
	a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS TO TWO AGREEMENTS FOR RENTAL ASSISTANCE WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM (HAWS).
	[Rental Assistance RES.doc]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.
	[Rental Assistance - PBO.docx]


	G-5. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS AUTHORIZING A LOAN OF UP TO $1,600,000 FOR ACQUISITION, DEMOLITION AND REHABILITATION/REPAIR IN SUPPORT OF 79 UNITS OF MULTI-FAMILY RENTAL HOUSING KNOWN AS NEW HOPE MANOR (NORTHEAST WARD) [Council remanded this item to Finance Committee at the August 15, 2016 Council Meeting.]:
	[Memo - Update - New Hope Manor.docx]
	[CARF - New Hope Manor.docx]
	[New Hope Manor Exhibit A.docx]
	[New Hope Manor Scope of Work Overview..pdf]
	[Housing Fund Balances Report 2016.pdf]
	a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LOAN TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR NEW HOPE MANOR. ($1,600,000).
	[Resolution - New Hope Manor.docx]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.
	[New Hope Manor - PBO.docx]




	??CONSENT AGENDA
	Property Matters
	C-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED PROPERTY BY PRIVATE SALE (N.C.G.S. 160A-279 AND 160A-514) TO UNITED HEALTH CENTERS.
	[United Health Care - CARF.doc]
	[United Health Care - Resolution.doc]
	[United Health Care - Letter.pdf]
	[United Health Care - Map.pdf]

	C-2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH JORDAN CONSULTANTS, ASLA, PA FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE NORTH WARD PARK. [$177,400]
	[Jordan Consultants North Ward Park-CARF.doc]
	[Jordan Consultants-North Ward Park-RESOLUTION.doc]


	Community and Economic Development
	C-3. REPORT ON THE EAST END MASTER PLAN.
	[City Council Cover Memo - East End Master Plan.doc]


	Public Safety
	C-4. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL TO ACCEPT A TRANSFER OF FORENSIC SERVICES EQUIPMENT FROM THE FORSYTH COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED CITY-COUNTY FORENSIC SERVICES UNIT.
	[Transfer FCSO Crime Lab Equipment for Consolidated Forensic Services Unit - CARF.doc]
	[Transfer FCSO Crime Lab Equipment for Consolidated Forensic Services Unit - RES.doc]
	[Exhibit A - Transfer FCSO Crime Lab Equipment for Consolidated Forensic Services Unit.doc]


	Leisure Services
	C-5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM TO APPLY FOR A PARKS AND RECREATION TRUST FUND (PARTF) 2016 CONNECT NC GRANT.
	[PARTF CNCB Grant 2016-CARF.docx]
	[PARTF CNCB Grant 2016-RESOLUTION.docx]


	Human Resources
	C-6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH AETNA FOR THE PROVISION OF A MEDICARE ADVANTAGE PLAN FOR RETIREES. [$1,362,000]
	[Aetna Medicare Advantage Contract - CARF.doc]
	[Aetna Medicare Advantage Contract - Resolution.docx]
	[Medicare Advantage Proposal Comparisons - Attachment.pdf]

	C-7. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH NORTH CAROLINA MUTUAL/SECURIAN FOR THE PROVISION OF EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURANCE. [$230,000]
	[Life Insurance NC Mutual - CARF.doc]
	[Life Insurance NC Mutual - Resolution.docx]
	[Proposal Comparisons - Attachment.pdf]


	Finance/Budget
	C-8. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATING TO CONTRACTS:
	a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF FITNESS COURSE EQUIPMENT AT PINEY GROVE PARK (NORTH WARD) - Cunningham Associates, Inc.-$129,861.14.
	[CARF - Playground Equipment - Piney Grove   9-19-16.docx]
	[RE - Playground Equipment - Piney Grove    9-19-16.doc]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Cunningham    8-25-16.pdf]

	b. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR MILLER PARK STREAM RESTORATION (SOUTHEAST WARD) - North State Environmental, Inc. - $328,422.85.
	[CARF - Miller Park Stream Restoration     9-19-16.pdf]
	[RE - Miller Park Stream Restoration      9-19-16.pdf]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - North State     9-19-16.pdf]

	c. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR BLUM PARK (NORTHEAST WARD) - Carolina Recreation & Design, LLC -$227,736.
	[CARF - Playground Equipment - Blum Park     9-19-16.docx]
	[RE - Playground Equipment - Blum Park       9-19-16.doc]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Carolina Recreation    9-7-16.pdf]
	[Cattails.pdf]
	[Eagles.pdf]
	[Swings.pdf]

	d. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SECURITY OFFICER SERVICES - AlliedBarton Security Services, LLC - $148,006.41 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Security Officer Services     9-19-16.docx]
	[RE - Security Officer Services     9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - AlliedBarton    9-19-16.pdf]
	[Exhibit B - Bid Package Evaluation Criteria.docx]

	e. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR ONE TON TRUCKS WITH DUMP BEDS - Piedmont Truck Center, LLC - $237,258.
	[CARF- One Ton Trucks with Dump Beds 9-19-16.docx]
	[RE- One Ton Trucks with Dump Beds 9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A.pdf]

	f. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR COMPACT PICK-UP TRUCKS - Modern Automotive Network, LLC - $150,220.
	[CARF- Compact Pickup Trucks  9-19-16.docx]
	[RE- Compact Pickup Trucks  9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Compact Pickups - FB1750.pdf]

	g. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR PICK-UP TRUCKS - Piedmont Truck Center, LLC -$105,976.
	[CARF- 3-4 Ton Trucks with 8 ft Utility Body 9-19-16.docx]
	[RE- 3-4 Ton Trucks with 8 ft Utility Body 9-19-16.docx]
	[EXHIBIT A.pdf]

	h. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR COMPUTERS - Dell Marketing L.P. - $310,314.39.
	[CARF - Dell Computers     9-19-16.docx]
	[RE - Dell Computers     9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Dell   9-19-16.pdf]

	i. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR MOTOROLA RADIOS FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FIRE DEPARTMENT - Motorola Solutions, Inc. - $173,404.
	[CARF - Motorola Radios    9-19-16.docx]
	[RE - Motorola Radios    9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Motorola    9-19-16.pdf]

	j. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR A FIRE PUMPER TRUCK - The Sutphen Corporation - $488,054.36.
	[CARF - Pumper Truck       9-19-16.docx]
	[RE - Pumper Truck       9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Sutphen Corporation   9-19-16.pdf]


	C-9. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REGARDINGCONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR FIRE STATIONS #7 AND #9:
	[CARF - Fire Stations 7 and 9     9-19-16.docx]
	a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR FIRE STATIONS #7 AND #9 - R.P. Murray, Inc. - $3,072,000. (Estimated Amount). 
	[RE - Fire Stations 7 and 9 Renovations      9-19-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - RP Murray   8-25-16.pdf]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.
	[PBO - Fire Stations Construction.docx]


	C-10. RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 ANNUAL TAX SETTLEMENT AND ADOPTION OF AN ORDER TO COLLECT CURRENT TAXES FOR 2016 (FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017) AND DELINQUENT TAXES FROM 2007 THROUGH 2015.

	[2016 TAX COLLECTION-CARF.docx]
	[TAX COLLECTION-Resolution.docx]
	[TAX COLLECTION-Order.docx]
	[TAX COLLECTION -  Exhibit A.xlsx]

	C-11. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 BUDGET ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA:
	[September 2016 Budget Amendment - CARF.doc]
	a. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX LEVY ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.
	[September 2016 Budget Amendment - AATLO.docx]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.
	[September 2016 Budget Amendment - PBO.docx]



	General Government
	C-12. ORDINANCEDESIGNATING CERTAIN PROPERTY AS A HISTORIC LANDMARK -The John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House, 605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem anda Portion of an Unopened Alley. Public Hearing October 17, 2016. 
	[John L. and Emma J. Gilmer House CARF.docx]
	[Gilmer House Ordinance.docx]
	[Gilmer House Map.pdf]
	[Gilmer House Photos.docx]
	[Planning Development Memo.docx]
	[Criteria.doc]

	C-13. APPROVAL OF FINANCE COMMITTEE SUMMARY OF MINUTES - August 8, 2016.
	[Finance Committee Minutes 8082016.pdf]




